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I N RE:

STATE OF M CH GAN
COUNTY OF OTTAWA

COUNTRY VI EW DRAI' N

BOARD OF DETERM NATI ON

Proceedi ngs commenced at 10: 00 a. m, on Thursday,

August 19, 2021, at the Holland Charter Township Fire

Departnent, Station #1, Holland, M chigan, held before

Marjorie A Covey, CSR-2616, RPR, Certified Shorthand

Reporter and Notary Public.

APPEARANCES:
M. Joe Bush, Otawa County Water Resources Comm ssioner
Ms. Sara Hirts, Secretary
M. Ken Souter, Board Chairman
M. Rich Vander Kl ok, Board Secretary
M. Josh Westgate, Board Menber
M. Lucas Tinmrer, Engineer, Prein & Newhof
M. Ken Bosma, Engineer, Prein & Newhof
M. Steve Bulthuis, Holland Charter Townshi p Manager
M. Jerry Qman, Otawa County Road Commi ssion
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Hol | and, M chi gan
August 19, 2021 - 10:00 a.m
PROCEEDI NGS

WATER RESOURCES COW JCE BUSH. Good norni ng,
everyone. |'m Joe Bush, OQtawa County Water Resources
Commi ssi oner, al so known as the Drain Conm ssioner. Sane
office, just different title, when | got el ected back in
2012.

And | wel cone you guys here today to figure out
what is the Board of Determ nation and why did we get a
notice and what is this about.

So a little highlight, we're here today for a
public hearing because back in the day, it's been a few years
back, Holland Townshi p decided this is an orphan drain
system And orphan neans nobody owns it. The township
doesn't really own it or have any jurisdiction. | don't, the
road conm ssion doesn't, the state doesn't. Nobody has
jurisdiction over the infrastructure, the storm sewer system
in here.

Back in the day, a | ot of those were devel oped and
t hey never got under the drain comm ssioner at the tinme, the
wat er resources commi ssioner's departnent. So nobody really
knows who to call when there is an issue. W know today's
infrastructure is having issues that fail, sinkholes, plugs,

you nane it. A basketball gets stuck in it, who do you call
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who fixes it? Nobody really knows who to call

So back in the day, I1'd say a few years back
Hol | and Township canme to nme and said, hey, we want to
establish all these orphan drains in our township. And this
is just specifically Holland Township at the nonent, but al
the other ones are kind of followng suit as well.

But Hol |l and Township said, hey, I want to go
t hrough and recogni ze these orphan drains and let's start
putting them under your jurisdiction so when there is an
i ssue, how do you pay for it, number one; and who do you cal
and who are the contractors, you know.

Not everybody knows how to fix drains, naybe a
wat er system sewer for a sewer backup, but not everybody
knows about stormwater until there is a problemor your
basenment gets flooded or the street collapses and the cul vert
col | apses.

So we're here today because we had a petition to
establish nore orphan drains, this is one of three that we're
going to get before this board, to see if they want to nove
forward with making it part of our infrastructure throughout
the county.

Ri ght now we have about 1200 drains, so addi ng one
nore isn't a big deal, it's just another one. They've been
adding up quite a fewin the |last few years.

But that being said, it's good for the public that
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peopl e are to know, hey, call the Water Resources
Comm ssioner, the drain guy and see if we can get sone
solution to the problem

And the process of that, this is all Drain Code,
it's all state law. Part of the public hearing is | appoint
a three-panel board. It's not township people. It's not a
pl anning conm ssion. It's not ZBA board nenbers. It's a
t hree- panel board that | appoint through Drain Code, which is
state law to say, hey, they're going to hear testinony today
from people |Iike yourselves who are here today and say, is
there a problemthat we don't know about ?

Currently right now we don't have any issues in
here. There is not an assessnent. There is not a project.
This is just the establishnent part.

If we were to do this in 2021, fast forward, we
woul d review this, because we review all the devel opnents.
think sone of you know that, through our departnent, and then
we woul d have a 433 Agreenment. That woul d becone a county
drain through the departnent review process. Back in the day
a lot of that didn't happen for whatever reason.

But to nove forward we try to nmake sure everything
is established under a county drain systemfor future
mai nt enance and you know who to call if there is a problem
Because if your drinking water has a problem you get an

I nvoi ce, you get a water bill, you know you have to cal
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ei ther Holland Township or BPWor sonething to get you a
sol ution.

So this three-panel board has no affiliation with
the drain district, which there is a map in the back and
Prein & Newhof will give a presentation on, here is the
district, here is what it |looks like. This was devel oped
when -- they'll give a lot of information on it. But then
they'Il say, according to this this was never established and
this is the area we want to establish today.

Thi s three-panel board doesn't pick a project.
They don't say, oh, | see an issue here. |It's totally upto
the public to conme forward with any issues because we don't
know about them As of now we don't know about any issues.

So the public hearing is the time for people to
come and |listen and speak and say, oh, yeah, | have a
fl oodi ng i ssue, ny basenent flooded, ny sunp punp goes to
this stormsewer systemand it's plugged and it's failing,
and there is sinkholes in nmy yard. A lot of tines we hear
t hat .

This is a small crowd today. Sonetines we get 3 or
400 people, but this is a snaller drain district too. But
you can have 3 or 400 people conme and show up for one of
these and it's like, oh, we found a ot of issues in that
stormsewer. But today | don't think there is nmany.

So that being said this three-panel board is to
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say, yep, we're going to nake a notion to potentially have
this under the jurisdiction of the Water Resources
Comm ssi oner noving forward so the residents there know who
to call.

That bei ng said, you know, these guys get a packet
but they haven't been out there. They haven't |ooked at it.
They don't get tine to inspect it. They take totally a
hundred percent public coment on this, and the engi neering
report, or any issues fromthe road comm ssion or Steve
Bul t huis from Hol | and Townshi p.

So that being said, once | give these three
gentl enmen the oath, they'll run the neeting. | just sit here
and wait for any public corment to them if | can answer any
questi ons.

And then they'll nmake a notion at the end whet her
it should fall under ny jurisdiction. It's totally up to
this three-panel board. Again they're not affiliated with
any properties in the drain district, they don't own
anyt hing, they don't rent anything and they don't live there.

| have to appoint people outside of the drain
district. Typically |I try to do -- they say, what kind of
experience do these three gentlenen have? WIlI|l there is two
of themon the board that's been doing it for a long tine.
But they understand Drain Code, drainage, zoning. A |ot of

them are either engineers or they' ve been on townshi p boards
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so they can nove forward and they can run this neeting. And

be assured that everything is court recorded. Everyone of

these I've been doing since 2013 is court recorded and it's

al ways on ny website at mttawa.org, you can go back and read

the m nutes on what happened, why it happened, who tal ked.

This is a small crowd but when you get 3 or 400

people it's nice to know who tal ked, who had i ssues. Because

then later down the road they'll cone back and say, well |
wasn't there. I'mlike, yeah, yeah, you were there, it's o

the m nutes, you spoke.

It's not required by law, but | do it just for the

citizens and also for ne and for the board, because it is al

| egal .

Peopl e are |ike, why do you have these in the
afternoon, well because it is legal, and if you go to court
it's always during business hours. So | try to keep it --
had them at night before and that didn't go so well. | had
nore people angry with nme that | had them at ni ght because

supper tinme, kids have ball practice, you know. Unless

n
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they're areally, really big district where you have 5, 000
peopl e, that can be a challenge to get a place in the
afternoon big enough to hold a | ot of people.

But typically they're in the norning, so we do
appreci ate you being here and having any coments is very
wel coned.

So at this time I'll go ahead and do introductions.
"Il go ahead and introduce other people before I do the
boar d.

W have Ken Bosma, he's with Prein & Newhof
Engi neering. W have Lucas Tinmmer, he's from Prein & Newhof
who wi Il do the presentations.

We have Steve Bulthuis, he's the Holland Township
Manager .

And then we have Jerry A man, he's fromthe road
conm ssion. Jerry and | worked together for many, many years
at the road commission. So we like to have his input as well
because there is probably road water in this system that
they're in favor or not in favor of. Typically they are in
favor of these things.

Then we have ny staff, Sara is ny secretary. And
we have Margie, she is our court recorder. She's done a |ot
of these for us over the years, so we always wel cone her
expertise on nmaki ng sure everybody is heard.

If you do have public comment, nmake sure you speak
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your name, address, speak |loudly so she can type it in and
keep up because it is a lot.

Then we have a three-panel board, we'll go from
right to left. W have Rich VanderKl ok from Geor get own
Townshi p.

Then in the center, Ken Souter, he's from Port
Shel don Townshi p.

And then we have Josh Westgate, and | believe he's
now t he deputy supervisor in Janestown, but he was the Wi ght
Townshi p Supervisor for quite a few years.

And then a little bit of experience, Ken Souter, he
was wth the road conm ssion 40 year in the engi neering
departnent, retired now.

BOARD MEMBER KEN SOQUTER: 38-and-a-hal f, but who's
counti ng.

WATER RESOURCES COMW JOE BUSH. Right. And Rich
was a Georgetown Township board nenber for nmany, many years
as well. So again they have the expertise to nmake deci si ons
based on what they hear and the testinonies and the
engi neering reports, and, yeah. They've been doing this for
quite a long time so they understand.

"Il go ahead and give these three gentlenen the
oat h.

If you could raise your right hand.

Do you each solemly swear that you will faithfully
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perform and di scharge the duties inposed upon you as required
by | aw as nenbers of the Board of Determ nation appointed by
the Gtawa County Water Resources Conmi ssioner to determ ne
the necessity and | ocate, establish and construct the
proposed county, or Country View Drain, |ocated in Holland
Charter Township in said county, gentlenen?

BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE: | do.

BOARD MEMBER RI CH VANDER KLCK: | do.

BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER | do.

WATER RESOURCES COMWM JCE BUSH: Thank you.

BOARD MEMBER KEN SOQUTER: First thing we got to do
is have a notion for chairperson.

BOARD MEMBER RI CH VANDER KLOK: 1'Ill nake a notion
that Ken Souter serve as chair.

BOARD MEMBER KEN SCOUTER: Do we have a second?

BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE: |'Ill second.

BOARD MEMBER KEN SCOUTER: Mved and seconded that |
am t he chairperson.

Al in favor, say aye.

BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE:  Aye.

BOARD MEMBER KEN SOQUTER: Aye.

BOARD MEMBER RI CH VANDER KLOK: Aye.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOQUTER: |'Il al so nake a notion
that Rich serve as secretary.

Do | have a second on that?
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BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE: | will second.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SQUTER: Moved and seconded t hat
Rich is going to be the secretary for this neeting.

And then I'Il make a notion that public coment be
limted to three mnutes per person. W can, as Bill Cargo
al ways says, you can do al nost anything in three m nutes,
tell us exactly what the problemis.

And so |'d nake that notion that we [imt the
comments to three minutes per person. |Is there --

BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE: | will second that
nmot i on.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SQUTER: Mboved and seconded.

Al in favor, say aye.

BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE:  Aye.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SCQUTER  Aye.

BOARD SECRETARY Rl CH VANDER KLOK: Aye.

BOARD CHAIR KEN SQUTER: All right. Let's start
out with the engineering here.

ENG NEER LUCAS TIMVER: All right. Thank you, Ken.

We'l|l start out with a presentation. Once again,
my nane is Lucas Timer. |'man engineer with Prein &
Newhof, along with Ken Bosna who is here as well. W are the

engi neers that were hired to do sone prelimnary review of
the Country View Drain.

So the Country View Drain is an existing storm
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water drain systemthat is wthout authorized |ocal and
county governnental jurisdiction and adm nistrative,
procedural and fundi ng nechani sns to address current and
future needs for maintenance and inprovenents.

So to summari ze that, essentially this is a private
system that was never formally established as a | egal system
as a county drain. And that neans if there are ever any
mai nt enance i ssues within the roads or inside easenents,
there would be no jurisdictional community that coul d address
t hose needs for naintenance.

So Holland Charter Township filed a petition to
establish this as a drainage district on May 20, 2021. And
t hey' ve established these county drains for many drains that
were before the 1990s, in which a lot of those drains were
not formally established as county drains.

As part of that county drain establishnment, we're
having this Board of Determ nation neeting today and to have
this three-panel board determine if it's necessary for this
to becone part of the county drain system

So Ken and I were hired to do sone prelimnary
engi neering work before this Board of Determ nation. So one
of the first things we reviewed is we reviewed the utility
record drawings. So we reviewed the sanitary sewer record
drawi ngs and water nmain record drawi ngs for the Country View

North. And we also reviewed the plats that were established
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for Country View North.

So the Country View North Plat was established in
1987. The Country View North Plat No. 2 was established in
1994. And Wirtsboro Creek, which is the southern portion of
t hat boundary, was established in 1995.

The Country View North plats, they have storm water
infrastructure; but as | nentioned, since about the md to
| ate '90s there has been nore of a process, a |egal process
to ensure that all new plats fromthe late '90 and on go
through that formal process of getting the storm water
infrastructure established as a county drain. But before
that time there wasn't that formal and | egal process to get
t hat establ i shed.

So Ken and | were then hired to delineate a
drai nage district. So a drainage district is essentially a
wat ershed. So everything within that drainage district is
consi dered contri buting runoff to the storm water
infrastructure that's part of those Country View North plats.

And we were able to do that by using G S county
contour data. W have one-foot contour data fromthe county
that is very effective in determning the watershed. W can
al so use our record drawi ngs to determ ne high points on
roads, to help us with delineating any aeri al s.

We then go out and visit the site to |ocate the

drain infrastructure and to confirmthe watershed we put
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t oget her makes sense.

So this map right here is the proposed drai nage
district. As you can see these blue |lines here are the
infrastructure that's in here. W have infrastructure as
part of Country View North and this infrastructure was put in
on Terri Lyn Lane as Country View North No. 2.

And we al so have this red boundary. This red
boundary here is the watershed boundary. So everything
within this red boundary is considered part of the drai nage
district, so that it would be considered contributing runoff
to this drain infrastructure. And everything on the outside
woul d be consi dered outside of the drainage district, so they
woul d be not part of that watershed.

So the next map shows the aerial of the proposed
drai nage district, the infrastructure. It is worth noting
that Ken and | went out back in late July to check these
drai nage districts, and we were unable to | ocate the outl et
for this storm sewer system

VW were able to |locate a catch basin behind a hone,
a duplex right here, but we were not able to |ocate the
outlets right here. So we are suspecting that the outlets
coul d possibly be buried. Wich these plats being
established in the late "80s, it's definitely possible that
over the years they could becone buried. And perhaps you

guys here in the audi ence can provide us nore information on
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t hat .

So followng this, we'll allowtinme for public
testinmony. You guys will each have three mnutes, just give
us sone nore information

We are not aware of any flooding issues. The
townshi p, the road commi ssion and the county aren't aware of
any issues in this area; but it's possible that you guys
owni ng properties in this district are aware of issues that
may need to be taken care of.

Fol | owi ng public testinony, the board will then
determ ne the necessity of the petition based on public
health, wel fare and/ or conveni ence, after hearing everybody's
testi nony.

So if it's deened necessary by the board, this
systemw || then becone a county drain. So from now on then
that stormwater systemw |l have an entity that's
responsible for maintaining it in the future.

If it's deened not necessary by the board, then no
further action will occur. The systemw || remain private.
It will be then the responsibility of the property owners
then for any future maintenance on that storm sewer system

So this slide has a | ot of |anguage in here and
"Il go through it fairly quickly, but we just want to
explain what the processes are if this becones a county

dr ai n.
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If it does becone a county drain, and from public
testinony we find out that there actually are a | ot of issues
with this drain that will require sonme form of maintenance
project, the process usually follows this kind of flow path.
So what will happen then is after this we find out there are
i ssues, Ken and | will investigate the issues and we'l]|
determ ne what feasible projects are to inprove drainage in
t he area.

We'll then go through a design process for drainage
mai nt enance and i nprovenents. So anongst the feasible
projects we wll select a project that nakes sense. W don't
want to go with a Cadillac project when a Yugo project could
work just as well, right? So we want to nake a project that
makes sense for the issues that are occurring in the drai nage
district.

We' Il then do project design and survey. W'l put
the project out for bid and construction. And then follow ng
that will be Day of Review of Apportionnent. So how that
process works is that the project costs and engi neering costs
and |l egal costs will all be assessed out then to the Otawa
County Road Conmi ssion, to Holland Township, but also to the
properties within the drainage district.

And | want to nake sure that everyone is aware if
no project were to occur and there is no drai nage issues,

Hol | and Township is willing to pay for all these costs, al
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the legal costs and engineering costs to nake this into a
county drain. The costs wll only be assessed out to the
property owners if it's determned that a project needs to
occur to address sonme form of maintenance issue with the
county drain.

In the future, if you guys don't have a probl em
now, but let's say a couple years fromnow you get a big rain
and you have a sinkhole that forns in the road froma
col | apsed storm sewer, a petition would then be needed if
it's a pretty big costly project.

So a petition is needed for any project that costs
nore than $5,000 per nile. So the petition process would
ei ther go through the township or you guys as the property
owners, and we'd have a simlar Board of Determ nation
process |ike we're having today to di scuss what the issues
are. And this board would then determine if it's necessary
to inmprove and maintain the drain for what the issues are.

If the project is less than 5,000, let's say it's
just a mnor blockage that involves a contractor coni ng out
there for half a day with an excavator to renove sone dirt,
what woul d happen then is we would not go through this fornal
petition process. This project would be likely I ess than the
$5, 000, and then Joe would have the ability then to assess
that out w thout going through the fornmal petition Board of

Det erm nati on process.
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So assessnents for all future projects would be
made to Otawa County, the road conmm ssion, Holland Township
and property owners.

So that's the end of ny presentation. Thank you.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOUTER: Can you go back to your
pi cture?

ENG NEER LUCAS Tl MVER:  Yes.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOUTER: You're show ng storm
drai nage comng out into, is that a |ake there? O is that
just open ground or what -- it |ooks Iike everything is going
to the center there. What is that?

ENG NEER LUCAS TI MVER. That's a good questi on.
Coul d he --

ENG NEER KEN BOSMA:  That was set up for future
devel opnent. | believe there was supposed to be an outl et
there for that particular area, to have sone detention, but
sone future devel opnent in there.

Are you still the developer on that and is that
correct, Steve?

BOARD CHAI R KEN SQUTER: So was there |ike at the
end of the stormsewers, was there |ike a ponding area or
somet hi ng?

ENG NEER KEN BOSMVA: It showed that as a snmal |
ar ea.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOUTER: Smal |l area for pondi ng?
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ENG NEER KEN BOSMA:  Yep.

ENG NEER LUCAS TIMVER: And this is all cornfield
ri ght now.

ENG NEER KEN BOSMA:  So it's possible over tine
it's just filled in.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOQUTER: (Ckay. Thank you very

much.

| think we'll go right then to public comrent, or
public testinmony. 1'Il open that for public coment.

And | guess we're just going to start -- let's

start with the gentleman right at the right there.

Do you have anything, real good input to give?
What' s goi ng on here?

MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH: Yep, ny nane is Caleb
VandenBosch. | work at Country View Apartnents so |I'mthere
day in and day out.

So to say there is water issues, | mean not that |
see. W've never had any issues. So to say that all of the
sudden there needs to be sone drai nage change, | don't know
what for.

I nean | know that we take care of the drainage
down the whole side of that cornfield where there is a river
| guess you could say. W take care of that. The
nei ghbori ng properties do not, to the north of us.

So | got pictures if you want to see them of the
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way we take care of the property.

| nmean you could take a drive in there and take a
| ook at it because it's a very well-maintained piece of
property all the way around.

And that cornfield is 100 percent sand. So to say
there is going to be sone drainage issue, there will be water
bui | dup, none what soever.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOUTER: | wouldn't m nd seeing
your pictures.

So basically there is a creek or --

MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH: Yeah, so basically, this
is the old farmbarn here and this is the creek right here
that we have neat and trinmed.

So then this is the creek picture right here as
well too, so this is behind all the four-plexes.

This is a brush pile | was not able to burn because
it was pushed up and into a bunch of trees. But over the
| ast three years |I've got burn permts, |I've had enpl oyees of
Country View renovi ng brush and renoving debris fromthe
creek.

The township also hired them at one point. They
took a 40-yard dunpster and filled it with trash. And you
can see how nmuch the kids fromthe nei ghboring properties, |
nean there is tires in there, they put wood in there.

The problemis they, at that 16-unit buil ding, have
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no where to go, they have no green space. So the kids take
to the ditches. And you can see everything --

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOUTER: You did too when you were

a kid.
MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH: ©Onh, yes, of course | did.
BOARD CHAI R KEN SOUTER: W all did that.
MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH: But the kids at Country
View, | see everything that goes on. | know tenants by nanes

and who |ives where and what happens. And this isn't from
our property.

You can see the way we maintain. And this is
from-- you can even see the building in the picture here.

It conmes straight fromthe building.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOQUTER: Whiere does that creek
drain to?

ENG NEER LUCAS TIMVER: So let ne -- Caleb, just
confirm this is the creek right here on the east side of
your property?

MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH: Yep, down this whol e side.

ENG NEER LUCAS TIMVER: And that's a county drain,
Ken, correct?

ENG NEER KEN BOSMA:  That's Drain No. 8 and that's
actually excluded fromthe district as we show it now.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SQUTER: The drain as it is. But

this particular devel opnment drains to that creek then, but
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you just couldn't find the outlet?

ENG NEER KEN BOSMA:  Correct.

Maybe, Cal eb, you're open to hel pi ng us understand
where those pipes may go that we're tal ki ng about.

MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH. My dad and Steve woul d
know exactly. W could pinpoint where things are. So we
know where all those things are.

ENG NEER KEN BOSMVA:  Ckay.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOQUTER: That woul d be hel pful for
t hem

| think the main thing that we're trying to do is
get this systemso that it's in the public entity. It
probably shoul d have been right away when the plat was done,
but it didn't happen.

MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH: Ri ght.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOUTER: It | ooks like you're
keeping -- the main drain is being done really well.

MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH: | nmean we hired a
contractor last year. He trinmmed out everything that was
growi ng wi thin that drai nage.

And then | also, over the |ast four years, have
records of renting a tractor and brush hog and brush hoggi ng
everything down to keep it flow ng clear

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOQUTER  That sounds good.

MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH: So we put work into it.
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BOARD CHAI R KEN SOUTER: That's great. I|I'mglad to

see it.
But I was kind of confused on howthis thing --
MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH: That just goes down the
whol e property but | feel it's part of -- it's not part of,

but it is part of the whole drai nage system And this is
what we do because this flows through the m ddle of our
property.

BOARD SECRETARY Rl CH VANDER KLOK: But you're
saying these are outside of this drainage district?

MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH: So the property on 132nd
and Riley Street, there is a big, it's like a 16-unit
bui | ding or sonmething of that sort, and the sane thing with
all the duplexes just to the north of us. It's those kids
that keep putting everything in the creek that we have to
keep cl eari ng.

And it's the fact that these property owners, they
do no work whatsoever for the drainage. So it builds up
there before it gets to us. But then we get the ness to
cl ean up consistently.

| know ny nmom Terri, has talked to the township
| ast year too about it because it gets to the point where
it's alot of work for us and we keep it up.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SQUTER: Sure, | understand. This

| ooks lIike kind of a wooded area. You got this pretty nice.
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MR, CALEB VANDEN BOSCH: So you can kind of see,

t hough, all the growth that has kind of conme up along the
creek area, and it just keeps going and going. But nothing
changes with it.

And this is -- | nean we --

BOARD CHAI R KEN SQUTER: W th all the Ash that have
been dying you're getting those trees down in there.

MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH:. Right. Qur problemis the
kids don't have any place to go so they go to the ditch and
they fill it up. That's what they do.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOQUTER: That's under st andabl e.
Looks good. Looks like you --

BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE: Thank you for the
pi ctures.

MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH: No probl em

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOUTER:  Next ?

MR STEVE GRASSM D: |'m Steve Grassm d.

I think he just said nost of it. But, yeah, he
basically said everything.

MR. KELLY VANDEN BOSCH: |'m Kelly VandenBosch, one
of the partners in Country View.

And as far as the issues of drainage | know of
anything just |like Caleb had nentioned, there was a tile that
was comng off fromthat. | was thinking that went all the

way to the creek, but Holland Engi neering did that
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original -- I"'msure there is sonething within the plat that
shows where that drain drained off to the side back behind
t hose four-pl exes.

And like | say, | presuned -- | know there is a
catch basin out in the field, it mght end up in that. That
was ny thinking that that's where it ended up.

But we could dig into that a little bit and hel p
you find out where that |ies.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOUTER: |'m sure the engi neers
woul d be very receptive to you kind of showi ng themthat,
where those things are.

MR, KELLY VANDEN BOSCH: | just don't understand
why the properties to the north aren't part of this if there
Is going to be an establishnent of that, because |ike Caleb
had nmentioned, that's primarily where the issues lie as far
as if anything does get plugged up. That's where the trash
conmes from that's where the debris cones from

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOQUTER: Ken, do you want to
coment on that?

ENG NEER KEN BOSMA:  As Lucas indicated up front
it's based on a watershed.

So the infrastructure that has no authority right
now is outlined in there before, and then what we're | ooking
at is what drains to that infrastructure. So those

properties to the north don't conme into those specific
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infrastructures, doesn't drain there. That drains to that
creek, as you're saying, which is a county drain, they cal
it Drain No. 8.

Soit's really outside of it, it doesn't flowto
that infrastructure

MR. KELLY VANDEN BOSCH: That's not one and the
sanme?

ENG NEER KEN BOSMA:  No. That actually is an
establ i shed county drain already.

What we're looking at is the infrastructure, al
these plats, site condom niuns, other things that have been
devel oped in the township that were attached to them never
had an authority over just those sections, those pipes in
there. And that's what this is doing is establishing those
areas that have no authority.

So we're just trying to get those under a county
drain -- or that's what's being asked. |If it's being deened
not, then nothing happens and it renmains private. But it
gi ves to sonebody the mechanismto be able to maintain it.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOUTER: So County Drain No. 8 is a
county drain and there is mechanisns to get that cleaned or
taken care of. But this portion of the plat that the storm
sewer and the easenents and that sort of thing, are not under
your jurisdiction?

ENG NEER KEN BOSMA:  Yes. And you can actual ly
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fall in several different drainage districts. So you wll
al so be part of that Drain No. 8 drainage district, because
that |and does get into the County Drain No. 8. It just
keeps going. Eventually you're all part of Lake M chigan,
right?

But these are all different smaller subdistricts
that way. And that's all we're looking at is this particular
part, when it was built, never was, cone under anybody's
authority.

MR. STEVE GRASSM D: kay. Can | ask one question?
What happens if we expand agai n?

ENG NEER KEN BOSMA:  So if you expand, that would
come under a 433 on that. So we'd tie into it with this and
then those properties also would be part of that district, as
wel |l as the road conm ssion being a public road and a public
t ownshi p.

MR. STEVE GRASSM D:. And that will automatically be
put into the --

ENG NEER KEN BOSMA:  Yes, you woul dn't have to go
t hrough this process again.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOQUTER:  Young | ady?

M5. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH: (Ckay, this is newto ne,
but |'m Terri VandenBosch. And |'ve been with Country Vi ew
Apartnents when it started about 35 years ago this fall. So

|'ve seen what's been going on for a long tine.
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And we've tried to maintain our community the best
we can. And | would say that if you were to drive around
right now, | think you' d consider us one of the top
wel | - mai nt ai ned apartnment comunities in the area.

Over the 35 years, | think one tinme we had a water
i ssue, and that's everybody was flooded. | don't knowif
that was about 15 years or so but there was a huge fl oodi ng.

So we have not had any water backing up into those
sewer areas or whatever you want to call those areas in the
roads, we've never had that.

But again |like Caleb said, probably our biggest
dilenmma is how such a crunch of housing is allowed to be
devel oped. We have got a big space for our residents, they
got big lawns, big space for kids; and when you' ve got tiny,
tiny spaces for kids that conme into our comunity | ooking for
a place to play, a place to ride their bikes, and they have
no place to go, so they do go to the ditches.

So that was | ast spring when | had called, | think
| talked with you, Joe. And one guy that took all this stuff
out said it looks |ike a garbage site, and they had to cone
back with, what, a big dunpster?

WATER RESOURCES COM JCE BUSH: A dunpster,
correct. That was one of our contractors.

M5. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH: | nean we're talking tires

to cars, we're talking pallets, things I can hardly unl oad.
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| mean | could do it, but we're tal king about sone nmjor
stuff that's getting haul ed down and haul ed i n.

"' m not sure what happens with what the planning
and devel opnent is for anynore in that area, but you're
trying to concentrate a | ot of people with no place for kids
to go. So if you looked, if you had a chance to wal k and
| ook right now, you'd say, wow. Because | had to contact
Randy Pluster (ph) with the unit on the corner of 132nd and
Ril ey, there was no cl osures around those dunpsters for years
and years and years.

And guess what's right behind the dunpsters; the
river.

Did you see that, Lucas?

ENG NEER LUCAS Tl MMER:  Yeah.

M5. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH: (Okay. So we begged them
to get a dunpster because the garbage would be tally-hoed
over the top and |land up down again into the river.

So, if you noticed, there is a brand-new encl osure
around there after about how nany years?

So we've been trying to maintain. W care about
our comunity. I'mpart of Holland. |'mpart of the area.
| care about the community. | care about the crine. | care
about our tenants. W care about drugs. W care about al
t hose things.

But we can't hel p what happens on Wirtsboro.
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Because if you take a ride down Wirtsboro, you see a
different picture. If you take a | ook and you go into these
pl aces right here along Riley and behind us, you can see who
cares and who doesn't care.

But, again, if this is sonmething to do with
dr ai nage and sonething that has to happen, then | guess it
does. | feel like the brunt of the expense is going to be
right on us, because that's what you' re show ng us right now
on this map, right? So if anything is assessed, the places
t hat have been nmai ntained and caring are going to be taking
the brunt of the assessnent. Correct?

WATER RESOURCES COMW JOE BUSH. Well as of right
now we don't have a project, nor do | perceive one. W're
just doing the process, the |egal process.

M5. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH. Ckay. And now did you
know Roscoe DeVries years ago?

WATER RESOURCES COW JCE BUSH. Very wel | .

M5. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH: So | guess nminly that
whol e river that is east of our project, that is really where
they felt, we keep that clean, we keep that flowing, that is
the place that water is going to be going to.

So again |I've been with the project for 35 years,
we have not had no water issue, okay.

BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE: Ckay.

WATER RESOURCES COW JCE BUSH: And then
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historically Iike when we clean that out, | think Holland
Townshi p and the county and the road comm ssion, | think we
all pick that cost up to clean that out.

So historically Holland Townshi p has been willing
to pick up the tab for those cl eanups of these rivers, if
it's mnimal. If it's over --

M5. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH. They have done sone. W
did hire Top Notch Service.

MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH: Last year Top Notch cane
out and brush hogged everything south of the bridge --

WATER RESOURCES COW JCE BUSH: Ckay.

MR, CALEB VANDEN BOSCH: -- that was right al ong
the creek. He went in as nuch as he could. And over the
past four years |'ve brush hogged it down nyself too just to
keep everything fromgrow ng up. Next thing we have trees
growmng in ditches. So nowit's perfectly clear that whol e
way down.

So four or five years ago, no, it wasn't.

WATER RESOURCES COMW JCE BUSH: Right.

MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH. Now it is. W put a fair
anmount of tinme and noney into it because |'ve hired kids over
the past few years to build huge brush piles. You start at
one end, you burn it across, you get burn permts. You can't
this day, it don't work; okay, now you can this day; now you

can't. It's a hassle.

OBrien & Bails Court Reporting and Video
(800) 878-8750 - M chigan Firm No. 8029

31




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

But we got to that point it's good and cl ean and
cl ear.

M5. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH: | guess | would just ask
that the units that are near the river get addressed. That
woul d be ny plea today. Because | can do everything | can
with ny river area, but when you have other areas that are
not | ooked at and nmintained --

WATER RESOURCES COMM JCE BUSH: This is why we
hol d public hearings, so we can actually hear --

M5. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH: Yep

WATER RESOURCES COM JCE BUSH: -- because it's
hard to keep up with everything --

M5. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH: It is. | think the
garbage is maybe | essening since they got the enclosures this
past spring.

WATER RESOURCES COMW JOE BUSH. And this is good
for the township to hear too for planning purposes,
ordi nances, zoning, clean-ups.

Hi storically, if people are deliberately putting
tires in drains, I will go back and assess those peopl e who
do that --

M5. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH: Ckay.

WATER RESOURCES COW JCE BUSH: | send them a
notice and say, either get themout, or I will get them out

and then send you the bill --
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M5. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH:  Yeah.

WATER RESOURCES COMWM JOE BUSH. ~-- if they're
deli berately just dunping, or they know they're doing it.

Not intentional but it beconmes a problem --

M5. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH:  Yeah.

WATER RESOURCES COMWM JCE BUSH: -- and that's
typically what we do. So it's nice to know that you guys are
doi ng your part, we appreciate that.

M5. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH: W try to do the best we
can. | feel bad for the kids that have no place. And that's
why they go to the creek.

So it was all cleaned out and now there is bridges
across there again.

WATER RESOURCES COVWM JCE BUSH  Because we | ust
went through and cl eaned out another section. So No. 8,
that's a big drain, it goes a long way, all the way up to
A ive Township and down to Lake Mac. It's a big one.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOUTER:  Jerry?

ROAD COW SSI ON JERRY OLMAN:  Jerry O man, Otawa
County Road Conmi ssi on.

I"mnot aware of any issues with the storm sewer
under the road there. |It's great that, you know, it's built
30 plus years ago and there haven't been any issues. That's
not al ways the case around the county.

But eventually the nortar around those pipes com ng
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into the basins, that nortar breaks down. It still mght be
good for another 30 years, but at sone point there will be
si nkhol es that will devel op around a catch basin or around a
manhol e that will need to be repaired.

So -- and to have this established as a drai nage
district, that gives a nechanismfor those repairs to happen
a snooth process.

So as far as that goes, the road comm ssion woul d
be in favor of establishing the district.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOUTER: Okay. Then is there any
ot her public that want to add to it?

Then we're going close the public portion of this
heari ng.

Ri ch, do you have any comments?

BOARD SECRETARY RI CH VANDER KLOK: Ckay. This is
an interesting one because | hear that there are a nunber of
vari ables involved in this whole process, in addition to what
we' re addressing here, and it sounds as if there is sone
i ssues that the township itself has been addressi ng and needs
to continue to address, particularly sone of the coments
that Terri made.

And so | don't, personally right now, unless |I can
be convinced otherwise, | personally don't see an
overwhel mng need to bring this into a drainage district; but

| can be persuaded by argunent if | hear sonme good argunents.
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But as Jerry just said, they haven't had any issues
and it could be good for another 30 years. So the township
does have the option to re-petition within a year or so, as
Lucas poi nted out.

So at this point I'mkind of on the fence.

BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE: | agree with sone of
t hose statenents and | do believe there are sone | oca
township issues. And | can see there m ght be sone issues
with some zoning violations that may have to be addressed
t hrough Hol |l and Township with sone of the neighboring
properties. (Cbviously this doesn't sound |ike we have
pendi ng water issues on the property.

Ken, your thoughts?

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOUTER: Ckay, I'mgenerally in
favor of bringing all the drainage systens within the
county's jurisdiction.

BOARD SECRETARY RI CH VANDER KLOK: Ri ght.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOUTER: And we're tal ki ng 30-sone
years that it's been working great, and that's fantastic.

You guys have been keeping up your property really good. But
it's still -- 1"l give you an exanpl e.

I live in Port Sheldon Township, and we have one of
these sane things in our township, and that's close to 40
years old now, and we're having issues. And if our drainage

had been in this, I would have called and said, we're having
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sone issues, can you see about getting it fixed. W can get
t hose fi xed.

But we can't now because of the fact that it is not
a public system |It's there, the drain conm ssioner approved
it at some tinme in the past, but never took it over.

And what |'msaying on this system I|ike I would
see on any system the best bet is to have it under the
jurisdiction of an entity within the county, so if sonething
happens, you call him

You probably woul d have called the township and the
townshi p would throw up their hands and say, we don't have
jurisdiction of it. And then you'll call Jerry, and say,
Jerry, you got a problem And Jerry says, we don't have any
jurisdiction of it.

| amjust totally in favor of tying these together.
And | think originally they thought they were tied together,
| think originally, but legality wise, they aren't, and
that's the only difference. W're trying to figure the |ega
parts of it.

So to ne, I'min favor.

BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE: To pi ggyback off of
that, there is no pending projects. This just creates a
district where if sonething does happen, it can be addressed.
It doesn't nmean you're going to get an assessnent inmmediately

because this was created. It does allow the authority of
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soneone to maintain it or clean it if something does happen.
So there is public benefit to that if something does happen.

BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER: |'mready for a --

BOARD SECRETARY RI CH VANDER KLOK: Well | just
woul d |i ke to make a coupl e conments.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOUTER: (Ckay.

BOARD SECRETARY RI CH VANDER KLOK: | appreciate
your insight because | think that's very good.

And there was one thing that you said in ternms of
bringing it in for the public, in that it's under the county.
And | thought, that probably nakes a | ot of sense.

There isn't an issue in the -- there is a |lot of
tangential kinds of things that have been tal ked about here
that don't really directly relate --

BOARD CHAI R KEN SQUTER: To what we're talking
about .

BOARD SECRETARY RI CH VANDER KLOK: -- to what we're
tal king about. So if you try to separate all of that out,
then | think your point is well nade.

And so that being said, | would nake a notion that
t he mai ntenance and i nprovenent of the Country View Drain is
necessary, and conducive to the public health, conveni ence or
wel fare

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOQUTER. Do we have support of

t hat ?
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BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE: |'Il1 support.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOUTER: Moved and supported

make a notion that the | ocation, establishnent, construction

of the Country View Drain as petitioned is necessary, and
conduci ve to public health, convenience and wel fare.

Al in favor, say aye.

BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE: Aye.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SQUTER  Aye.

BOARD SECRETARY Rl CH VANDER KLOK: Aye.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOQUTER: Those opposed?

Motion carried.

I think that's it.

WATER RESOURCES COW JOCE BUSH: Well | want to
make a couple coments. | appreciate you guys comng in and
spending the norning with us. The other thing is for the

appeal, so you can appeal today's decision with circu

court. You got ten days after today.

Sonme people have tried that in the past or thought

about it, but, yeah, there is noney and a cost to that

But again we appreciate your tine. There is

currently no project. | just want to nake that statenent.

And it is recorded, we don't have a project, there is
assessnent according to a project. It's just the

est abl i shnment .

So if there is issues, and if you see nore trash,

to

t

no
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be sure to contact us. And then Steve and | talk on a
regul ar basis, | talk wth all the townships, but especially
Hol | and because it's a grow ng township.

W have a | ot of devel opnents, a |lot of plats going
in, alot of coomercial, a lot of sites everywhere. |It's
ki nd of crazy busy.

But that being said we try to be on top of the
trash issues. W don't want bl ockages in them And if there
are some nei ghbors that aren't being very environnental ly
sensitive by just throwing a | ot of garbage in, then we need
to address those as well.

So that's all | got.

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOUTER  Thank you

BOARD SECRETARY RI CH VANDER KLOK: Is there a
notion to adjourn?

BOARD CHAI R KEN SOUTER: Mbdtion to adjourn, so
noved.

(Board of Determination - Country View Drain - adjourned

at 10:48 a.m )
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           1                 Holland, Michigan



           2                 August 19, 2021 - 10:00 a.m.



           3                             PROCEEDINGS



           4                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  Good morning,



           5       everyone.  I'm Joe Bush, Ottawa County Water Resources



           6       Commissioner, also known as the Drain Commissioner.  Same



           7       office, just different title, when I got elected back in



           8       2012.



           9                 And I welcome you guys here today to figure out



          10       what is the Board of Determination and why did we get a



          11       notice and what is this about.



          12                 So a little highlight, we're here today for a



          13       public hearing because back in the day, it's been a few years



          14       back, Holland Township decided this is an orphan drain



          15       system.  And orphan means nobody owns it.  The township



          16       doesn't really own it or have any jurisdiction.  I don't, the



          17       road commission doesn't, the state doesn't.  Nobody has



          18       jurisdiction over the infrastructure, the storm sewer system



          19       in here.



          20                 Back in the day, a lot of those were developed and



          21       they never got under the drain commissioner at the time, the



          22       water resources commissioner's department.  So nobody really



          23       knows who to call when there is an issue.  We know today's



          24       infrastructure is having issues that fail, sinkholes, plugs,



          25       you name it.  A basketball gets stuck in it, who do you call,
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           1       who fixes it?  Nobody really knows who to call.



           2                 So back in the day, I'd say a few years back,



           3       Holland Township came to me and said, hey, we want to



           4       establish all these orphan drains in our township.  And this



           5       is just specifically Holland Township at the moment, but all



           6       the other ones are kind of following suit as well.



           7                 But Holland Township said, hey, I want to go



           8       through and recognize these orphan drains and let's start



           9       putting them under your jurisdiction so when there is an



          10       issue, how do you pay for it, number one; and who do you call



          11       and who are the contractors, you know.



          12                 Not everybody knows how to fix drains, maybe a



          13       water system, sewer for a sewer backup, but not everybody



          14       knows about storm water until there is a problem or your



          15       basement gets flooded or the street collapses and the culvert



          16       collapses.



          17                 So we're here today because we had a petition to



          18       establish more orphan drains, this is one of three that we're



          19       going to get before this board, to see if they want to move



          20       forward with making it part of our infrastructure throughout



          21       the county.



          22                 Right now we have about 1200 drains, so adding one



          23       more isn't a big deal, it's just another one.  They've been



          24       adding up quite a few in the last few years.



          25                 But that being said, it's good for the public that
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           1       people are to know, hey, call the Water Resources



           2       Commissioner, the drain guy and see if we can get some



           3       solution to the problem.



           4                 And the process of that, this is all Drain Code,



           5       it's all state law.  Part of the public hearing is I appoint



           6       a three-panel board.  It's not township people.  It's not a



           7       planning commission.  It's not ZBA board members.  It's a



           8       three-panel board that I appoint through Drain Code, which is



           9       state law to say, hey, they're going to hear testimony today



          10       from people like yourselves who are here today and say, is



          11       there a problem that we don't know about?



          12                 Currently right now we don't have any issues in



          13       here.  There is not an assessment.  There is not a project.



          14       This is just the establishment part.



          15                 If we were to do this in 2021, fast forward, we



          16       would review this, because we review all the developments.  I



          17       think some of you know that, through our department, and then



          18       we would have a 433 Agreement.  That would become a county



          19       drain through the department review process.  Back in the day



          20       a lot of that didn't happen for whatever reason.



          21                 But to move forward we try to make sure everything



          22       is established under a county drain system for future



          23       maintenance and you know who to call if there is a problem.



          24       Because if your drinking water has a problem, you get an



          25       invoice, you get a water bill, you know you have to call
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           1       either Holland Township or BPW or something to get you a



           2       solution.



           3                 So this three-panel board has no affiliation with



           4       the drain district, which there is a map in the back and



           5       Prein & Newhof will give a presentation on, here is the



           6       district, here is what it looks like.  This was developed



           7       when -- they'll give a lot of information on it.  But then



           8       they'll say, according to this this was never established and



           9       this is the area we want to establish today.



          10                 This three-panel board doesn't pick a project.



          11       They don't say, oh, I see an issue here.  It's totally up to



          12       the public to come forward with any issues because we don't



          13       know about them.  As of now we don't know about any issues.



          14                 So the public hearing is the time for people to



          15       come and listen and speak and say, oh, yeah, I have a



          16       flooding issue, my basement flooded, my sump pump goes to



          17       this storm sewer system and it's plugged and it's failing,



          18       and there is sinkholes in my yard.  A lot of times we hear



          19       that.



          20                 This is a small crowd today.  Sometimes we get 3 or



          21       400 people, but this is a smaller drain district too.  But



          22       you can have 3 or 400 people come and show up for one of



          23       these and it's like, oh, we found a lot of issues in that



          24       storm sewer.  But today I don't think there is many.



          25                 So that being said this three-panel board is to
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           1       say, yep, we're going to make a motion to potentially have



           2       this under the jurisdiction of the Water Resources



           3       Commissioner moving forward so the residents there know who



           4       to call.



           5                 That being said, you know, these guys get a packet



           6       but they haven't been out there.  They haven't looked at it.



           7       They don't get time to inspect it.  They take totally a



           8       hundred percent public comment on this, and the engineering



           9       report, or any issues from the road commission or Steve



          10       Bulthuis from Holland Township.



          11                 So that being said, once I give these three



          12       gentlemen the oath, they'll run the meeting.  I just sit here



          13       and wait for any public comment to them, if I can answer any



          14       questions.



          15                 And then they'll make a motion at the end whether



          16       it should fall under my jurisdiction.  It's totally up to



          17       this three-panel board.  Again they're not affiliated with



          18       any properties in the drain district, they don't own



          19       anything, they don't rent anything and they don't live there.



          20                 I have to appoint people outside of the drain



          21       district.  Typically I try to do -- they say, what kind of



          22       experience do these three gentlemen have?  Well there is two



          23       of them on the board that's been doing it for a long time.



          24       But they understand Drain Code, drainage, zoning.  A lot of



          25       them are either engineers or they've been on township boards
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           1       in other townships for many, many years as well, as far as



           2       leadership, supervisors, clerks.  So they've been involved in



           3       zoning, drain code in their own township, let alone somebody



           4       else's township.  So they do understand the process, why



           5       we're here and what their job is to do today.



           6                 And I'll go ahead and do introductions at this time



           7       so they can move forward and they can run this meeting.  And



           8       be assured that everything is court recorded.  Everyone of



           9       these I've been doing since 2013 is court recorded and it's



          10       always on my website at mittawa.org, you can go back and read



          11       the minutes on what happened, why it happened, who talked.



          12                 This is a small crowd but when you get 3 or 400



          13       people it's nice to know who talked, who had issues.  Because



          14       then later down the road they'll come back and say, well I



          15       wasn't there.  I'm like, yeah, yeah, you were there, it's on



          16       the minutes, you spoke.



          17                 It's not required by law, but I do it just for the



          18       citizens and also for me and for the board, because it is all



          19       legal.



          20                 People are like, why do you have these in the



          21       afternoon, well because it is legal, and if you go to court



          22       it's always during business hours.  So I try to keep it -- I



          23       had them at night before and that didn't go so well.  I had



          24       more people angry with me that I had them at night because



          25       supper time, kids have ball practice, you know.  Unless
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           1       they're a really, really big district where you have 5,000



           2       people, that can be a challenge to get a place in the



           3       afternoon big enough to hold a lot of people.



           4                 But typically they're in the morning, so we do



           5       appreciate you being here and having any comments is very



           6       welcomed.



           7                 So at this time I'll go ahead and do introductions.



           8       I'll go ahead and introduce other people before I do the



           9       board.



          10                 We have Ken Bosma, he's with Prein & Newhof



          11       Engineering.  We have Lucas Timmer, he's from Prein & Newhof



          12       who will do the presentations.



          13                 We have Steve Bulthuis, he's the Holland Township



          14       Manager.



          15                 And then we have Jerry Olman, he's from the road



          16       commission.  Jerry and I worked together for many, many years



          17       at the road commission.  So we like to have his input as well



          18       because there is probably road water in this system, that



          19       they're in favor or not in favor of.  Typically they are in



          20       favor of these things.



          21                 Then we have my staff, Sara is my secretary.  And



          22       we have Margie, she is our court recorder.  She's done a lot



          23       of these for us over the years, so we always welcome her



          24       expertise on making sure everybody is heard.



          25                 If you do have public comment, make sure you speak
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           1       your name, address, speak loudly so she can type it in and



           2       keep up because it is a lot.



           3                 Then we have a three-panel board, we'll go from



           4       right to left.  We have Rich VanderKlok from Georgetown



           5       Township.



           6                 Then in the center, Ken Souter, he's from Port



           7       Sheldon Township.



           8                 And then we have Josh Westgate, and I believe he's



           9       now the deputy supervisor in Jamestown, but he was the Wright



          10       Township Supervisor for quite a few years.



          11                 And then a little bit of experience, Ken Souter, he



          12       was with the road commission 40 year in the engineering



          13       department, retired now.



          14                 BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER:  38-and-a-half, but who's



          15       counting.



          16                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  Right.  And Rich



          17       was a Georgetown Township board member for many, many years



          18       as well.  So again they have the expertise to make decisions



          19       based on what they hear and the testimonies and the



          20       engineering reports, and, yeah.  They've been doing this for



          21       quite a long time so they understand.



          22                 I'll go ahead and give these three gentlemen the



          23       oath.



          24                 If you could raise your right hand.



          25                 Do you each solemnly swear that you will faithfully
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           1       perform and discharge the duties imposed upon you as required



           2       by law as members of the Board of Determination appointed by



           3       the Ottawa County Water Resources Commissioner to determine



           4       the necessity and locate, establish and construct the



           5       proposed county, or Country View Drain, located in Holland



           6       Charter Township in said county, gentlemen?



           7                 BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE:  I do.



           8                 BOARD MEMBER RICH VANDER KLOK:  I do.



           9                 BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER:  I do.



          10                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  Thank you.



          11                 BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER:  First thing we got to do



          12       is have a motion for chairperson.



          13                 BOARD MEMBER RICH VANDER KLOK:  I'll make a motion



          14       that Ken Souter serve as chair.



          15                 BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER:  Do we have a second?



          16                 BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE:  I'll second.



          17                 BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER:  Moved and seconded that I



          18       am the chairperson.



          19                 All in favor, say aye.



          20                 BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE:  Aye.



          21                 BOARD MEMBER KEN SOUTER:  Aye.



          22                 BOARD MEMBER RICH VANDER KLOK:  Aye.



          23                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  I'll also make a motion



          24       that Rich serve as secretary.



          25                 Do I have a second on that?







                                         10

�









           1                 BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE:  I will second.



           2                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Moved and seconded that



           3       Rich is going to be the secretary for this meeting.



           4                 And then I'll make a motion that public comment be



           5       limited to three minutes per person.  We can, as Bill Cargo



           6       always says, you can do almost anything in three minutes,



           7       tell us exactly what the problem is.



           8                 And so I'd make that motion that we limit the



           9       comments to three minutes per person.  Is there --



          10                 BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE:  I will second that



          11       motion.



          12                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Moved and seconded.



          13                 All in favor, say aye.



          14                 BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE:  Aye.



          15                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Aye.



          16                 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KLOK:  Aye.



          17                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  All right.  Let's start



          18       out with the engineering here.



          19                 ENGINEER LUCAS TIMMER:  All right.  Thank you, Ken.



          20                 We'll start out with a presentation.  Once again,



          21       my name is Lucas Timmer.  I'm an engineer with Prein &



          22       Newhof, along with Ken Bosma who is here as well.  We are the



          23       engineers that were hired to do some preliminary review of



          24       the Country View Drain.



          25                 So the Country View Drain is an existing storm







                                         11

�









           1       water drain system that is without authorized local and



           2       county governmental jurisdiction and administrative,



           3       procedural and funding mechanisms to address current and



           4       future needs for maintenance and improvements.



           5                 So to summarize that, essentially this is a private



           6       system that was never formally established as a legal system



           7       as a county drain.  And that means if there are ever any



           8       maintenance issues within the roads or inside easements,



           9       there would be no jurisdictional community that could address



          10       those needs for maintenance.



          11                 So Holland Charter Township filed a petition to



          12       establish this as a drainage district on May 20, 2021.  And



          13       they've established these county drains for many drains that



          14       were before the 1990s, in which a lot of those drains were



          15       not formally established as county drains.



          16                 As part of that county drain establishment, we're



          17       having this Board of Determination meeting today and to have



          18       this three-panel board determine if it's necessary for this



          19       to become part of the county drain system.



          20                 So Ken and I were hired to do some preliminary



          21       engineering work before this Board of Determination.  So one



          22       of the first things we reviewed is we reviewed the utility



          23       record drawings.  So we reviewed the sanitary sewer record



          24       drawings and water main record drawings for the Country View



          25       North.  And we also reviewed the plats that were established
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           1       for Country View North.



           2                 So the Country View North Plat was established in



           3       1987.  The Country View North Plat No. 2 was established in



           4       1994.  And Wurtsboro Creek, which is the southern portion of



           5       that boundary, was established in 1995.



           6                 The Country View North plats, they have storm water



           7       infrastructure; but as I mentioned, since about the mid to



           8       late '90s there has been more of a process, a legal process



           9       to ensure that all new plats from the late '90 and on go



          10       through that formal process of getting the storm water



          11       infrastructure established as a county drain.  But before



          12       that time there wasn't that formal and legal process to get



          13       that established.



          14                 So Ken and I were then hired to delineate a



          15       drainage district.  So a drainage district is essentially a



          16       watershed.  So everything within that drainage district is



          17       considered contributing runoff to the storm water



          18       infrastructure that's part of those Country View North plats.



          19                 And we were able to do that by using GIS county



          20       contour data.  We have one-foot contour data from the county



          21       that is very effective in determining the watershed.  We can



          22       also use our record drawings to determine high points on



          23       roads, to help us with delineating any aerials.



          24                 We then go out and visit the site to locate the



          25       drain infrastructure and to confirm the watershed we put
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           1       together makes sense.



           2                 So this map right here is the proposed drainage



           3       district.  As you can see these blue lines here are the



           4       infrastructure that's in here.  We have infrastructure as



           5       part of Country View North and this infrastructure was put in



           6       on Terri Lyn Lane as Country View North No. 2.



           7                 And we also have this red boundary.  This red



           8       boundary here is the watershed boundary.  So everything



           9       within this red boundary is considered part of the drainage



          10       district, so that it would be considered contributing runoff



          11       to this drain infrastructure.  And everything on the outside



          12       would be considered outside of the drainage district, so they



          13       would be not part of that watershed.



          14                 So the next map shows the aerial of the proposed



          15       drainage district, the infrastructure.  It is worth noting



          16       that Ken and I went out back in late July to check these



          17       drainage districts, and we were unable to locate the outlet



          18       for this storm sewer system.



          19                 We were able to locate a catch basin behind a home,



          20       a duplex right here, but we were not able to locate the



          21       outlets right here.  So we are suspecting that the outlets



          22       could possibly be buried.  Which these plats being



          23       established in the late '80s, it's definitely possible that



          24       over the years they could become buried.  And perhaps you



          25       guys here in the audience can provide us more information on
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           1       that.



           2                 So following this, we'll allow time for public



           3       testimony.  You guys will each have three minutes, just give



           4       us some more information.



           5                 We are not aware of any flooding issues.  The



           6       township, the road commission and the county aren't aware of



           7       any issues in this area; but it's possible that you guys



           8       owning properties in this district are aware of issues that



           9       may need to be taken care of.



          10                 Following public testimony, the board will then



          11       determine the necessity of the petition based on public



          12       health, welfare and/or convenience, after hearing everybody's



          13       testimony.



          14                 So if it's deemed necessary by the board, this



          15       system will then become a county drain.  So from now on then



          16       that storm water system will have an entity that's



          17       responsible for maintaining it in the future.



          18                 If it's deemed not necessary by the board, then no



          19       further action will occur.  The system will remain private.



          20       It will be then the responsibility of the property owners



          21       then for any future maintenance on that storm sewer system.



          22                 So this slide has a lot of language in here and



          23       I'll go through it fairly quickly, but we just want to



          24       explain what the processes are if this becomes a county



          25       drain.
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           1                 If it does become a county drain, and from public



           2       testimony we find out that there actually are a lot of issues



           3       with this drain that will require some form of maintenance



           4       project, the process usually follows this kind of flow path.



           5       So what will happen then is after this we find out there are



           6       issues, Ken and I will investigate the issues and we'll



           7       determine what feasible projects are to improve drainage in



           8       the area.



           9                 We'll then go through a design process for drainage



          10       maintenance and improvements.  So amongst the feasible



          11       projects we will select a project that makes sense.  We don't



          12       want to go with a Cadillac project when a Yugo project could



          13       work just as well, right?  So we want to make a project that



          14       makes sense for the issues that are occurring in the drainage



          15       district.



          16                 We'll then do project design and survey.  We'll put



          17       the project out for bid and construction.  And then following



          18       that will be Day of Review of Apportionment.  So how that



          19       process works is that the project costs and engineering costs



          20       and legal costs will all be assessed out then to the Ottawa



          21       County Road Commission, to Holland Township, but also to the



          22       properties within the drainage district.



          23                 And I want to make sure that everyone is aware if



          24       no project were to occur and there is no drainage issues,



          25       Holland Township is willing to pay for all these costs, all
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           1       the legal costs and engineering costs to make this into a



           2       county drain.  The costs will only be assessed out to the



           3       property owners if it's determined that a project needs to



           4       occur to address some form of maintenance issue with the



           5       county drain.



           6                 In the future, if you guys don't have a problem



           7       now, but let's say a couple years from now you get a big rain



           8       and you have a sinkhole that forms in the road from a



           9       collapsed storm sewer, a petition would then be needed if



          10       it's a pretty big costly project.



          11                 So a petition is needed for any project that costs



          12       more than $5,000 per mile.  So the petition process would



          13       either go through the township or you guys as the property



          14       owners, and we'd have a similar Board of Determination



          15       process like we're having today to discuss what the issues



          16       are.  And this board would then determine if it's necessary



          17       to improve and maintain the drain for what the issues are.



          18                 If the project is less than 5,000, let's say it's



          19       just a minor blockage that involves a contractor coming out



          20       there for half a day with an excavator to remove some dirt,



          21       what would happen then is we would not go through this formal



          22       petition process.  This project would be likely less than the



          23       $5,000, and then Joe would have the ability then to assess



          24       that out without going through the formal petition Board of



          25       Determination process.
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           1                 So assessments for all future projects would be



           2       made to Ottawa County, the road commission, Holland Township



           3       and property owners.



           4                 So that's the end of my presentation.  Thank you.



           5                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Can you go back to your



           6       picture?



           7                 ENGINEER LUCAS TIMMER:  Yes.



           8                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  You're showing storm



           9       drainage coming out into, is that a lake there?  Or is that



          10       just open ground or what -- it looks like everything is going



          11       to the center there.  What is that?



          12                 ENGINEER LUCAS TIMMER:  That's a good question.



          13       Could he --



          14                 ENGINEER KEN BOSMA:  That was set up for future



          15       development.  I believe there was supposed to be an outlet



          16       there for that particular area, to have some detention, but



          17       some future development in there.



          18                 Are you still the developer on that and is that



          19       correct, Steve?



          20                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  So was there like at the



          21       end of the storm sewers, was there like a ponding area or



          22       something?



          23                 ENGINEER KEN BOSMA:  It showed that as a small



          24       area.



          25                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Small area for ponding?
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           1                 ENGINEER KEN BOSMA:  Yep.



           2                 ENGINEER LUCAS TIMMER:  And this is all cornfield



           3       right now.



           4                 ENGINEER KEN BOSMA:  So it's possible over time



           5       it's just filled in.



           6                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Okay.  Thank you very



           7       much.



           8                 I think we'll go right then to public comment, or



           9       public testimony.  I'll open that for public comment.



          10                 And I guess we're just going to start -- let's



          11       start with the gentleman right at the right there.



          12                 Do you have anything, real good input to give?



          13       What's going on here?



          14                 MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH:  Yep, my name is Caleb



          15       VandenBosch.  I work at Country View Apartments so I'm there



          16       day in and day out.



          17                 So to say there is water issues, I mean not that I



          18       see.  We've never had any issues.  So to say that all of the



          19       sudden there needs to be some drainage change, I don't know



          20       what for.



          21                 I mean I know that we take care of the drainage



          22       down the whole side of that cornfield where there is a river,



          23       I guess you could say.  We take care of that.  The



          24       neighboring properties do not, to the north of us.



          25                 So I got pictures if you want to see them of the
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           1       way we take care of the property.



           2                 I mean you could take a drive in there and take a



           3       look at it because it's a very well-maintained piece of



           4       property all the way around.



           5                 And that cornfield is 100 percent sand.  So to say



           6       there is going to be some drainage issue, there will be water



           7       buildup, none whatsoever.



           8                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  I wouldn't mind seeing



           9       your pictures.



          10                 So basically there is a creek or --



          11                 MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH:  Yeah, so basically, this



          12       is the old farm barn here and this is the creek right here



          13       that we have neat and trimmed.



          14                 So then this is the creek picture right here as



          15       well too, so this is behind all the four-plexes.



          16                 This is a brush pile I was not able to burn because



          17       it was pushed up and into a bunch of trees.  But over the



          18       last three years I've got burn permits, I've had employees of



          19       Country View removing brush and removing debris from the



          20       creek.



          21                 The township also hired them at one point.  They



          22       took a 40-yard dumpster and filled it with trash.  And you



          23       can see how much the kids from the neighboring properties, I



          24       mean there is tires in there, they put wood in there.



          25                 The problem is they, at that 16-unit building, have
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           1       no where to go, they have no green space.  So the kids take



           2       to the ditches.  And you can see everything --



           3                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  You did too when you were



           4       a kid.



           5                 MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH:  Oh, yes, of course I did.



           6                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  We all did that.



           7                 MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH:  But the kids at Country



           8       View, I see everything that goes on.  I know tenants by names



           9       and who lives where and what happens.  And this isn't from



          10       our property.



          11                 You can see the way we maintain.  And this is



          12       from -- you can even see the building in the picture here.



          13       It comes straight from the building.



          14                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Where does that creek



          15       drain to?



          16                 ENGINEER LUCAS TIMMER:  So let me -- Caleb, just



          17       confirm, this is the creek right here on the east side of



          18       your property?



          19                 MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH:  Yep, down this whole side.



          20                 ENGINEER LUCAS TIMMER:  And that's a county drain,



          21       Ken, correct?



          22                 ENGINEER KEN BOSMA:  That's Drain No. 8 and that's



          23       actually excluded from the district as we show it now.



          24                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  The drain as it is.  But



          25       this particular development drains to that creek then, but
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           1       you just couldn't find the outlet?



           2                 ENGINEER KEN BOSMA:  Correct.



           3                 Maybe, Caleb, you're open to helping us understand



           4       where those pipes may go that we're talking about.



           5                 MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH:  My dad and Steve would



           6       know exactly.  We could pinpoint where things are.  So we



           7       know where all those things are.



           8                 ENGINEER KEN BOSMA:  Okay.



           9                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  That would be helpful for



          10       them.



          11                 I think the main thing that we're trying to do is



          12       get this system so that it's in the public entity.  It



          13       probably should have been right away when the plat was done,



          14       but it didn't happen.



          15                 MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH:  Right.



          16                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  It looks like you're



          17       keeping -- the main drain is being done really well.



          18                 MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH:  I mean we hired a



          19       contractor last year.  He trimmed out everything that was



          20       growing within that drainage.



          21                 And then I also, over the last four years, have



          22       records of renting a tractor and brush hog and brush hogging



          23       everything down to keep it flowing clear.



          24                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  That sounds good.



          25                 MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH:  So we put work into it.
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           1                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  That's great.  I'm glad to



           2       see it.



           3                 But I was kind of confused on how this thing --



           4                 MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH:  That just goes down the



           5       whole property but I feel it's part of -- it's not part of,



           6       but it is part of the whole drainage system.  And this is



           7       what we do because this flows through the middle of our



           8       property.



           9                 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KLOK:  But you're



          10       saying these are outside of this drainage district?



          11                 MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH:  So the property on 132nd



          12       and Riley Street, there is a big, it's like a 16-unit



          13       building or something of that sort, and the same thing with



          14       all the duplexes just to the north of us.  It's those kids



          15       that keep putting everything in the creek that we have to



          16       keep clearing.



          17                 And it's the fact that these property owners, they



          18       do no work whatsoever for the drainage.  So it builds up



          19       there before it gets to us.  But then we get the mess to



          20       clean up consistently.



          21                 I know my mom, Terri, has talked to the township



          22       last year too about it because it gets to the point where



          23       it's a lot of work for us and we keep it up.



          24                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Sure, I understand.  This



          25       looks like kind of a wooded area.  You got this pretty nice.
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           1                 MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH:  So you can kind of see,



           2       though, all the growth that has kind of come up along the



           3       creek area, and it just keeps going and going.  But nothing



           4       changes with it.



           5                 And this is -- I mean we --



           6                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  With all the Ash that have



           7       been dying you're getting those trees down in there.



           8                 MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH:  Right.  Our problem is the



           9       kids don't have any place to go so they go to the ditch and



          10       they fill it up.  That's what they do.



          11                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  That's understandable.



          12       Looks good.  Looks like you --



          13                 BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE:  Thank you for the



          14       pictures.



          15                 MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH:  No problem.



          16                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Next?



          17                 MR. STEVE GRASSMID:  I'm Steve Grassmid.



          18                 I think he just said most of it.  But, yeah, he



          19       basically said everything.



          20                 MR. KELLY VANDEN BOSCH:  I'm Kelly VandenBosch, one



          21       of the partners in Country View.



          22                 And as far as the issues of drainage I know of



          23       anything just like Caleb had mentioned, there was a tile that



          24       was coming off from that.  I was thinking that went all the



          25       way to the creek, but Holland Engineering did that
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           1       original -- I'm sure there is something within the plat that



           2       shows where that drain drained off to the side back behind



           3       those four-plexes.



           4                 And like I say, I presumed -- I know there is a



           5       catch basin out in the field, it might end up in that.  That



           6       was my thinking that that's where it ended up.



           7                 But we could dig into that a little bit and help



           8       you find out where that lies.



           9                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  I'm sure the engineers



          10       would be very receptive to you kind of showing them that,



          11       where those things are.



          12                 MR. KELLY VANDEN BOSCH:  I just don't understand



          13       why the properties to the north aren't part of this if there



          14       is going to be an establishment of that, because like Caleb



          15       had mentioned, that's primarily where the issues lie as far



          16       as if anything does get plugged up.  That's where the trash



          17       comes from, that's where the debris comes from.



          18                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Ken, do you want to



          19       comment on that?



          20                 ENGINEER KEN BOSMA:  As Lucas indicated up front



          21       it's based on a watershed.



          22                 So the infrastructure that has no authority right



          23       now is outlined in there before, and then what we're looking



          24       at is what drains to that infrastructure.  So those



          25       properties to the north don't come into those specific
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           1       infrastructures, doesn't drain there.  That drains to that



           2       creek, as you're saying, which is a county drain, they call



           3       it Drain No. 8.



           4                 So it's really outside of it, it doesn't flow to



           5       that infrastructure.



           6                 MR. KELLY VANDEN BOSCH:  That's not one and the



           7       same?



           8                 ENGINEER KEN BOSMA:  No.  That actually is an



           9       established county drain already.



          10                 What we're looking at is the infrastructure, all



          11       these plats, site condominiums, other things that have been



          12       developed in the township that were attached to them never



          13       had an authority over just those sections, those pipes in



          14       there.  And that's what this is doing is establishing those



          15       areas that have no authority.



          16                 So we're just trying to get those under a county



          17       drain -- or that's what's being asked.  If it's being deemed



          18       not, then nothing happens and it remains private.  But it



          19       gives to somebody the mechanism to be able to maintain it.



          20                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  So County Drain No. 8 is a



          21       county drain and there is mechanisms to get that cleaned or



          22       taken care of.  But this portion of the plat that the storm



          23       sewer and the easements and that sort of thing, are not under



          24       your jurisdiction?



          25                 ENGINEER KEN BOSMA:  Yes.  And you can actually
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           1       fall in several different drainage districts.  So you will



           2       also be part of that Drain No. 8 drainage district, because



           3       that land does get into the County Drain No. 8.  It just



           4       keeps going.  Eventually you're all part of Lake Michigan,



           5       right?



           6                 But these are all different smaller subdistricts



           7       that way.  And that's all we're looking at is this particular



           8       part, when it was built, never was, come under anybody's



           9       authority.



          10                 MR. STEVE GRASSMID:  Okay.  Can I ask one question?



          11       What happens if we expand again?



          12                 ENGINEER KEN BOSMA:  So if you expand, that would



          13       come under a 433 on that.  So we'd tie into it with this and



          14       then those properties also would be part of that district, as



          15       well as the road commission being a public road and a public



          16       township.



          17                 MR. STEVE GRASSMID:  And that will automatically be



          18       put into the --



          19                 ENGINEER KEN BOSMA:  Yes, you wouldn't have to go



          20       through this process again.



          21                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Young lady?



          22                 MS. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH:  Okay, this is new to me,



          23       but I'm Terri VandenBosch.  And I've been with Country View



          24       Apartments when it started about 35 years ago this fall.  So



          25       I've seen what's been going on for a long time.
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           1                 And we've tried to maintain our community the best



           2       we can.  And I would say that if you were to drive around



           3       right now, I think you'd consider us one of the top



           4       well-maintained apartment communities in the area.



           5                 Over the 35 years, I think one time we had a water



           6       issue, and that's everybody was flooded.  I don't know if



           7       that was about 15 years or so but there was a huge flooding.



           8                 So we have not had any water backing up into those



           9       sewer areas or whatever you want to call those areas in the



          10       roads, we've never had that.



          11                 But again like Caleb said, probably our biggest



          12       dilemma is how such a crunch of housing is allowed to be



          13       developed.  We have got a big space for our residents, they



          14       got big lawns, big space for kids; and when you've got tiny,



          15       tiny spaces for kids that come into our community looking for



          16       a place to play, a place to ride their bikes, and they have



          17       no place to go, so they do go to the ditches.



          18                 So that was last spring when I had called, I think



          19       I talked with you, Joe.  And one guy that took all this stuff



          20       out said it looks like a garbage site, and they had to come



          21       back with, what, a big dumpster?



          22                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  A dumpster,



          23       correct.  That was one of our contractors.



          24                 MS. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH:  I mean we're talking tires



          25       to cars, we're talking pallets, things I can hardly unload.
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           1       I mean I could do it, but we're talking about some major



           2       stuff that's getting hauled down and hauled in.



           3                 I'm not sure what happens with what the planning



           4       and development is for anymore in that area, but you're



           5       trying to concentrate a lot of people with no place for kids



           6       to go.  So if you looked, if you had a chance to walk and



           7       look right now, you'd say, wow.  Because I had to contact



           8       Randy Pluster (ph) with the unit on the corner of 132nd and



           9       Riley, there was no closures around those dumpsters for years



          10       and years and years.



          11                 And guess what's right behind the dumpsters; the



          12       river.



          13                 Did you see that, Lucas?



          14                 ENGINEER LUCAS TIMMER:  Yeah.



          15                 MS. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH:  Okay.  So we begged them



          16       to get a dumpster because the garbage would be tally-hoed



          17       over the top and land up down again into the river.



          18                 So, if you noticed, there is a brand-new enclosure



          19       around there after about how many years?



          20                 So we've been trying to maintain.  We care about



          21       our community.  I'm part of Holland.  I'm part of the area.



          22       I care about the community.  I care about the crime.  I care



          23       about our tenants.  We care about drugs.  We care about all



          24       those things.



          25                 But we can't help what happens on Wurtsboro.
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           1       Because if you take a ride down Wurtsboro, you see a



           2       different picture.  If you take a look and you go into these



           3       places right here along Riley and behind us, you can see who



           4       cares and who doesn't care.



           5                 But, again, if this is something to do with



           6       drainage and something that has to happen, then I guess it



           7       does.  I feel like the brunt of the expense is going to be



           8       right on us, because that's what you're showing us right now



           9       on this map, right?  So if anything is assessed, the places



          10       that have been maintained and caring are going to be taking



          11       the brunt of the assessment.  Correct?



          12                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  Well as of right



          13       now we don't have a project, nor do I perceive one.  We're



          14       just doing the process, the legal process.



          15                 MS. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH:  Okay.  And now did you



          16       know Roscoe DeVries years ago?



          17                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  Very well.



          18                 MS. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH:  So I guess mainly that



          19       whole river that is east of our project, that is really where



          20       they felt, we keep that clean, we keep that flowing, that is



          21       the place that water is going to be going to.



          22                 So again I've been with the project for 35 years,



          23       we have not had no water issue, okay.



          24                 BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE:  Okay.



          25                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  And then
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           1       historically like when we clean that out, I think Holland



           2       Township and the county and the road commission, I think we



           3       all pick that cost up to clean that out.



           4                 So historically Holland Township has been willing



           5       to pick up the tab for those cleanups of these rivers, if



           6       it's minimal.  If it's over --



           7                 MS. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH:  They have done some.  We



           8       did hire Top Notch Service.



           9                 MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH:  Last year Top Notch came



          10       out and brush hogged everything south of the bridge --



          11                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  Okay.



          12                 MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH:  -- that was right along



          13       the creek.  He went in as much as he could.  And over the



          14       past four years I've brush hogged it down myself too just to



          15       keep everything from growing up.  Next thing we have trees



          16       growing in ditches.  So now it's perfectly clear that whole



          17       way down.



          18                 So four or five years ago, no, it wasn't.



          19                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  Right.



          20                 MR. CALEB VANDEN BOSCH:  Now it is.  We put a fair



          21       amount of time and money into it because I've hired kids over



          22       the past few years to build huge brush piles.  You start at



          23       one end, you burn it across, you get burn permits.  You can't



          24       this day, it don't work; okay, now you can this day; now you



          25       can't.  It's a hassle.
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           1                 But we got to that point it's good and clean and



           2       clear.



           3                 MS. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH:  I guess I would just ask



           4       that the units that are near the river get addressed.  That



           5       would be my plea today.  Because I can do everything I can



           6       with my river area, but when you have other areas that are



           7       not looked at and maintained --



           8                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  This is why we



           9       hold public hearings, so we can actually hear --



          10                 MS. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH:  Yep.



          11                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  -- because it's



          12       hard to keep up with everything --



          13                 MS. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH:  It is.  I think the



          14       garbage is maybe lessening since they got the enclosures this



          15       past spring.



          16                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  And this is good



          17       for the township to hear too for planning purposes,



          18       ordinances, zoning, clean-ups.



          19                 Historically, if people are deliberately putting



          20       tires in drains, I will go back and assess those people who



          21       do that --



          22                 MS. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH:  Okay.



          23                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  I send them a



          24       notice and say, either get them out, or I will get them out



          25       and then send you the bill --







                                         32

�









           1                 MS. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH:  Yeah.



           2                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  -- if they're



           3       deliberately just dumping, or they know they're doing it.



           4       Not intentional but it becomes a problem --



           5                 MS. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH:  Yeah.



           6                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  -- and that's



           7       typically what we do.  So it's nice to know that you guys are



           8       doing your part, we appreciate that.



           9                 MS. TERRI VANDEN BOSCH:  We try to do the best we



          10       can.  I feel bad for the kids that have no place.  And that's



          11       why they go to the creek.



          12                 So it was all cleaned out and now there is bridges



          13       across there again.



          14                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  Because we just



          15       went through and cleaned out another section.  So No. 8,



          16       that's a big drain, it goes a long way, all the way up to



          17       Olive Township and down to Lake Mac.  It's a big one.



          18                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Jerry?



          19                 ROAD COMMISSION JERRY OLMAN:  Jerry Olman, Ottawa



          20       County Road Commission.



          21                 I'm not aware of any issues with the storm sewer



          22       under the road there.  It's great that, you know, it's built



          23       30 plus years ago and there haven't been any issues.  That's



          24       not always the case around the county.



          25                 But eventually the mortar around those pipes coming
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           1       into the basins, that mortar breaks down.  It still might be



           2       good for another 30 years, but at some point there will be



           3       sinkholes that will develop around a catch basin or around a



           4       manhole that will need to be repaired.



           5                 So -- and to have this established as a drainage



           6       district, that gives a mechanism for those repairs to happen,



           7       a smooth process.



           8                 So as far as that goes, the road commission would



           9       be in favor of establishing the district.



          10                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Okay.  Then is there any



          11       other public that want to add to it?



          12                 Then we're going close the public portion of this



          13       hearing.



          14                 Rich, do you have any comments?



          15                 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KLOK:  Okay.  This is



          16       an interesting one because I hear that there are a number of



          17       variables involved in this whole process, in addition to what



          18       we're addressing here, and it sounds as if there is some



          19       issues that the township itself has been addressing and needs



          20       to continue to address, particularly some of the comments



          21       that Terri made.



          22                 And so I don't, personally right now, unless I can



          23       be convinced otherwise, I personally don't see an



          24       overwhelming need to bring this into a drainage district; but



          25       I can be persuaded by argument if I hear some good arguments.
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           1                 But as Jerry just said, they haven't had any issues



           2       and it could be good for another 30 years.  So the township



           3       does have the option to re-petition within a year or so, as



           4       Lucas pointed out.



           5                 So at this point I'm kind of on the fence.



           6                 BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE:  I agree with some of



           7       those statements and I do believe there are some local



           8       township issues.  And I can see there might be some issues



           9       with some zoning violations that may have to be addressed



          10       through Holland Township with some of the neighboring



          11       properties.  Obviously this doesn't sound like we have



          12       pending water issues on the property.



          13                 Ken, your thoughts?



          14                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Okay, I'm generally in



          15       favor of bringing all the drainage systems within the



          16       county's jurisdiction.



          17                 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KLOK:  Right.



          18                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  And we're talking 30-some



          19       years that it's been working great, and that's fantastic.



          20       You guys have been keeping up your property really good.  But



          21       it's still -- I'll give you an example.



          22                 I live in Port Sheldon Township, and we have one of



          23       these same things in our township, and that's close to 40



          24       years old now, and we're having issues.  And if our drainage



          25       had been in this, I would have called and said, we're having
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           1       some issues, can you see about getting it fixed.  We can get



           2       those fixed.



           3                 But we can't now because of the fact that it is not



           4       a public system.  It's there, the drain commissioner approved



           5       it at some time in the past, but never took it over.



           6                 And what I'm saying on this system, like I would



           7       see on any system, the best bet is to have it under the



           8       jurisdiction of an entity within the county, so if something



           9       happens, you call him.



          10                 You probably would have called the township and the



          11       township would throw up their hands and say, we don't have



          12       jurisdiction of it.  And then you'll call Jerry, and say,



          13       Jerry, you got a problem.  And Jerry says, we don't have any



          14       jurisdiction of it.



          15                 I am just totally in favor of tying these together.



          16       And I think originally they thought they were tied together,



          17       I think originally, but legality wise, they aren't, and



          18       that's the only difference.  We're trying to figure the legal



          19       parts of it.



          20                 So to me, I'm in favor.



          21                 BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE:  To piggyback off of



          22       that, there is no pending projects.  This just creates a



          23       district where if something does happen, it can be addressed.



          24       It doesn't mean you're going to get an assessment immediately



          25       because this was created.  It does allow the authority of
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           1       someone to maintain it or clean it if something does happen.



           2       So there is public benefit to that if something does happen.



           3                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  I'm ready for a --



           4                 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KLOK:  Well I just



           5       would like to make a couple comments.



           6                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Okay.



           7                 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KLOK:  I appreciate



           8       your insight because I think that's very good.



           9                 And there was one thing that you said in terms of



          10       bringing it in for the public, in that it's under the county.



          11       And I thought, that probably makes a lot of sense.



          12                 There isn't an issue in the -- there is a lot of



          13       tangential kinds of things that have been talked about here



          14       that don't really directly relate --



          15                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  To what we're talking



          16       about.



          17                 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KLOK:  -- to what we're



          18       talking about.  So if you try to separate all of that out,



          19       then I think your point is well made.



          20                 And so that being said, I would make a motion that



          21       the maintenance and improvement of the Country View Drain is



          22       necessary, and conducive to the public health, convenience or



          23       welfare.



          24                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Do we have support of



          25       that?
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           1                 BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE:  I'll support.



           2                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Moved and supported to



           3       make a motion that the location, establishment, construction



           4       of the Country View Drain as petitioned is necessary, and



           5       conducive to public health, convenience and welfare.



           6                 All in favor, say aye.



           7                 BOARD MEMBER JOSH WESTGATE:  Aye.



           8                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Aye.



           9                 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KLOK:  Aye.



          10                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Those opposed?



          11                 Motion carried.



          12                 I think that's it.



          13                 WATER RESOURCES COMM. JOE BUSH:  Well I want to



          14       make a couple comments.  I appreciate you guys coming in and



          15       spending the morning with us.  The other thing is for the



          16       appeal, so you can appeal today's decision with circuit



          17       court.  You got ten days after today.



          18                 Some people have tried that in the past or thought



          19       about it, but, yeah, there is money and a cost to that.



          20                 But again we appreciate your time.  There is



          21       currently no project.  I just want to make that statement.



          22       And it is recorded, we don't have a project, there is no



          23       assessment according to a project.  It's just the



          24       establishment.



          25                 So if there is issues, and if you see more trash,
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           1       be sure to contact us.  And then Steve and I talk on a



           2       regular basis, I talk with all the townships, but especially



           3       Holland because it's a growing township.



           4                 We have a lot of developments, a lot of plats going



           5       in, a lot of commercial, a lot of sites everywhere.  It's



           6       kind of crazy busy.



           7                 But that being said we try to be on top of the



           8       trash issues.  We don't want blockages in them.  And if there



           9       are some neighbors that aren't being very environmentally



          10       sensitive by just throwing a lot of garbage in, then we need



          11       to address those as well.



          12                 So that's all I got.



          13                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Thank you.



          14                 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KLOK:  Is there a



          15       motion to adjourn?



          16                 BOARD CHAIR KEN SOUTER:  Motion to adjourn, so



          17       moved.



          18          (Board of Determination - Country View Drain - adjourned



          19             at 10:48 a.m. )



          20



          21



          22



          23



          24



          25
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STATE OF M CH GAN

COUNTY OF OTTAVWA

IN RE: COUNTRY VI EW DRAI'N

BOARD OF DETERM NATI ON

Proceedi ngs commenced at 10: 00 a.m, on Thursday,

August 19, 2021, at the Holland Charter Township Fire

Departnment, Station #1, Holland, M chigan, held before

Marjorie A Covey, CSR-2616, RPR, Certified Shorthand

Reporter and Notary Public.
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1 Hol I and, M chi gan 1 people are to know hey, call the éter Resources

2 August 19, 2021 - 10:00 a.m 2 Commissioner, the drain guy and see if we can get some

3 PROCEED NGS 3 solution to the problem

4 WATER RESOURCES OO JCE BUSH  Good mor ni ng, 4 And the process of that, thisis all Drain Code,

5 everyone. |'mJoe Bush, Qtawa County Véter Resources 5 it'sall state law Part of the public hearing is | appoint

6  Commissioner, also known as the Drain Gommissioner. Sane 6 athree-panel board. It's not township people. It's not a

7 office just different title, when | got elected back in 7 planning conmission. It's not ZBA board menbers. It's a

8 2012, 8 three-panel board that | appoint through Drain Code, whichis

9 And | wel cone you guys here today to figure out 9 state lawto say, hey, they're going to hear testinony today

10 what is the Board of Determination and why did we get a 10 frompeople like yoursel ves who are here today and say, is

11 notice and what is this about. 11 there a problemthat we don't know about?

12 So alittle highlight, we're here today for a 12 Qurrently right nowwe don't have any issues in

13 public hearing because back in the day, it's been a few years 13 here. There is not an assessment. There is not a project.

14 back, Holland Township decided this is an orphan drain 14 Thisis just the establishment part.

15 system And orphan neans nobody owns it. The township 15 If we were to do this in 2021, fast forvard, we

16 doesn't really own it or have any jurisdiction. | don't, the 16 would reviewthis, because we reviewall the devel oprents. |

17 road conmission doesn't, the state doesn't. Nobody has 17 think some of you know that, through our departnent, and then

18 jurisdiction over the infrastructure, the stormsewer system 18 we woul d have a 433 Agreement. That woul d becone a county

19 in here. 19 drain through the department review process. Back in the day

20 Back in the day, alot of those were devel oped and 20 alot of that didn't happen for whatever reason.

21 they never got under the drain conmssioner at the tine, the 21 But to nove forward we try to make sure everything

22 water resources commssioner's department. So nobody really 22 is established under a county drain systemfor future

23 knows who to call when there is an issue. V¢ know today's 23 maintenance and you know who to call if there is a probl em

24 infrastructure i s having issues that fail, sinkholes, plugs, 24 Because if your drinking water has a problem you get an

25 you name it. A basketball gets stuck init, who do you call, 25 invoice, you get a water bill, you know you have to call
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1 wvho fixes it? Nobody really knows who to call. 1 either Hlland Township or BPWor sonething to get you a

2 So back in the day, 1'd say a few years back, 2 solution.

3 Hilland Township came to ne and said, hey, we want to 3 So this three-panel board has no affiliation with

4 establish all these orphan drains in our township. And this 4 the drain district, which there is amapin the back and

5 isjust specifically Hlland Township at the moment, but all 5 Prein & Newhof will give a presentation on, here is the

6 the other ones are kind of followng suit as vell. 6 district, hereis what it looks like. This was devel oped

7 But Holland Township said, hey, | want to go 7 when -- they'll give alot of information onit. But then

8 through and recogni ze these orphan drains and let's start 8 they'|l say, according to this this was never established and

9 putting themunder your jurisdiction so when there is an 9 thisis the area we vant to establish today.

10 issue, howdo you pay for it, number one; and who do you call 10 This three-panel board doesn't pick a project.

11 and who are the contractors, you know 11 They don't say, oh, | see anissue here. It's totally upto

12 Not everybody knows how to fix drains, maybe a 12 the public to cone forward with any issues because we don't

13 water system sever for a sewer backup, but not everybody 13 know about them As of now we don't know about any issues.

14 knows about stormwater until there is a problemor your 14 So the public hearing is the time for people to

15 basement gets flooded or the street collapses and the cul vert 15 come and |isten and speak and say, oh, yeah, | have a

16 col | apses. 16  flooding issue, ny basement flooded, ny sump punp goes to

17 So ve're here today because we had a petition to 17 this stormsewer systemand it's plugged and it's failing,

18 establish more orphan drains, this is one of three that we're 18 and there is sinkholes in ny yard. Alot of tines we hear

19 going to get before this board, to see if they want to move 19 that.

20 forward with making it part of our infrastructure throughout 20 Thisis asnall crond today. Sonetines we get 3 or

21 the county. 21 400 people, but this is asnaller draindistrict too. But

22 R ght now we have about 1200 drains, so adding one 22 you can have 3 or 400 peopl e cone and show up for one of

23 moreisn't ahbigdeal, it's just another one. They've been 23 these and it's Iike, oh, we found a lot of issues in that

24 adding up quite a fewin the last few years. 24 stormsewer. But today | don't think there is nany.

25 But that being said, it's good for the public that 25 So that being said this three-panel boardis to
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1 say, yep, we're going to make a notion to potentially have 1 they'reareally, really big district where you have 5,000

2 this under the jurisdiction of the Viéter Resources 2 people, that can be a challenge to get a place in the

3 Commi ssioner noving forward so the residents there know who 3 afternoon big enough to hold a lot of people

4 tocal. 4 But typically they're in the norning, so we do

5 That being said, you know these guys get a packet 5 appreciate you being here and having any comments is very

6 but they haven't been out there. They haven't |ooked at it. 6 el coned

7 They don't get time to inspect it. They take totally a 7 S at this time I'll go ahead and do introductions

8 hundred percent public conmment on this, and the engineering 8 I'Il go ahead and introduce other people before | do the

9 report, or any issues fromthe road commission or Steve 9 board.

10 Bulthuis fromHol I and Townshi p. 10 V¢ have Ken Bosma, he's with Prein & Newhof

1 So that being said, once | give these three 11 Engineering. V¢ have Lucas Tirmmer, he's fromPrein & Newhof

12 gentlemen the oath, they'Il run the neeting. | just sit here 12 who wll do the presentations

13 and wait for any public comment to them if | can answer any 13 V¢ have Seve Bulthuis, he's the Holland Township

14 questions. 14 Manager.

15 And then they' Il nake a motion at the end whet her 15 And then we have Jerry Qman, he's fromthe road

16 it should fall under ny jurisdiction. It's totally upto 16 commission. Jerry and | worked together for nany, many years

17 this three-panel hoard. Again they're not affiliated with 17 at the road comission. So we like to have his input as vel

18 any properties in the drain district, they don't own 18  because there is probably road water in this system that

19 anything, they don't rent anything and they don't live there. 19 they'rein favor or not in favor of. Typically they are in

20 | have to appoint peopl e outside of the drain 20 favor of these things

21 district. Typically | try to do -- they say, what kind of 21 Then we have ny staff, Sarais ny secretary. And

22 experience do these three gentlenen have? V@Il there is two 22 we have Margie, sheis our court recorder. She's done a | ot

23 of themon the board that's been doing it for along tine. 23 of these for us over the years, so we always el cone her

24 But they understand Drain Code, drainage, zoning. Alot of 24 expertise on making sure everybody is heard.

25 themare either engineers or they've been on township boards 25 [f you do have public conment, make sure you speak
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1 inother townships for many, nany years as well, as far as 1 your nane, address, speak |oudly so she can type it in and

2 leadership, supervisors, clerks. So they've been involved in 2 keep up because it is alot.

3 zoning, drain code in their own township, let alone somebody 3 Then we have a three-panel hoard, we'll go from

4 else's township. So they do understand the process, why 4 right to left. V¢ have Rich VanderK ok from Geor get own

5 we're here and what their jobis to do today. 5  Township

6 And 1"l go ahead and do introductions at this tine 6 Then in the center, Ken Souter, he's fromPort

7 so they can move forward and they can run this meeting. And 7 Shel don Townshi p

8 be assured that everything is court recorded. Everyone of 8 And then we have Josh Wéstgate, and | believe he's

9 these I"'ve been doing since 2013 is court recorded and it's 9 now the deputy supervisor in Janestown, but he was the Wi ght

10 always on ny website at nittawa. org, you can go back and read 10  Township Supervisor for quite a fewyears

11 the minutes on what happened, why it happened, who tal ked. 1 And then a little bit of experience, Ken Souter, he

12 This is asnall crowd but when you get 3 or 400 12 was with the road commission 40 year in the engineering

13 peopleit's nice to know who tal ked, who had issues. Because 13 department, retired now

14 then later down the road they'll cone back and say, well | 14 BOARD MEMBER KEN SQUTER  38-and-a-hal f, but who's

15 wesn't there. |'mlike, yeah, yeah, you were there, it's on 15 counting

16 the nminutes, you spoke. 16 VATER RESOLRCES OO JCE BUSH  Right. And Rich

17 [t's not required by law but | doit just for the 17 was a Georgetown Township board menber for nany, many years

18 citizens and also for me and for the hoard, because it is all 18 as well. So again they have the expertise to nake decisions

19 legal. 19 based on what they hear and the testinonies and the

20 Peopl e are like, why do you have these in the 20 engineering reports, and, yeah. They've been doing this for

21 afternoon, well because it is legal, and if you go to court 21 quite along tine so they understand.

22 it's always during business hours. Sol try to keep it -- | 22 ["Il go ahead and give these three gentlenen the

23 had themat night before and that didn't go so well. | had 23 oath.

24 more people angry with ne that | had themat night because 24 [f you coul d raise your right hand

25 supper tine, kids have ball practice, you know Ul ess 25 Do you each sol emnly swear that you will faithfully
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1 performand discharge the duties inposed upon you as required 1 vater drain systemthat is wthout authorized |ocal and

2 by lawas nenbers of the Board of Deternination appointed by 2 county governnental jurisdiction and adninistrative

3 the Gtawa County Véter Resources Commissioner to deternine 3 procedural and funding mechani sns to address current and

4 the necessity and | ocate, establish and construct the 4 future needs for maintenance and i nprovenents

5 proposed county, or Country View Drain, located in Holland 5 So to summarize that, essentially thisis a private

6 Charter Township in said county, gentlenen? 6 systemthat was never formally established as a legal system

7 BOARD MEVBER JCBH VEESTGATE: | do. 7 asacounty drain. And that neans if there are ever any

8 BOARD MEVBER R CH VANDER KLXK: | do. 8 mintenance issues wthin the roads or inside easenents,

9 BOARD MEVBER KEN SIUTER | do. 9 there would be no jurisdictional commnity that coul d address

10 WATER RESOURCES COMM JCE BUSH  Thank you. 10 those needs for nai ntenance.

1 BOARD MEVBER KEN SQUTER ~ First thing we got to do 1 So Holland Charter Township filed a petition to

12 is have a motion for chairperson. 12 establish this as a drainage district on My 20, 2021. And

13 BOARD MEVBER R CH VANDER KLXK: 1" 11 make a notion 13 they' ve established these county drains for nany drains that

14 that Ken Souter serve as chair. 14 were before the 1990s, in which a lot of those drains were

15 BOARD MEVBER KEN SIUTER Do we have a second? 15 ot formally established as county drains

16 BOARD MEMBER JCBH VEESTGATE:  I'11 second. 16 As part of that county drain establishnent, we're

17 BOARD MEMBER KEN SQUTER  Moved and seconded that | 17 having this Board of Deternination neeting today and to have

18 amthe chai rperson. 18 this three-panel board deternine if it's necessary for this

19 Al in favor, say aye. 19 to become part of the county drain system

20 BOARD MEMBER JCBH VESTGATE  Aye. 20 So Ken and | were hired to do sone prelimnary

21 BOARD MEMBER KEN SQUTER  Aye. 21 engineering work before this Board of Deternination. So one

22 BOARD MEMBER R CH VANDER KLXK: Aye. 22 of the first things we reviewed is we reviewed the utility

23 BOARD CHAR KEN SQUTER  1'I1 al so make a notion 23 record drawngs. So we reviewed the sanitary sewer record

24 that Rch serve as secretary. 24 drawings and water main record draw ngs for the Country Mew

25 Do | have a second on that? 25 MNorth. And ve also reviewed the plats that were established
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1 BOARD MEMBER JCBH VEESTGATE: | will second. 1 for Gountry View North.

2 BOARD CHAIR KEN S(UTER  Moved and seconded t hat 2 So the Qountry View North Plat was established in

3 Rchis going to be the secretary for this neeting. 3 1987. The Country View North Plat No. 2 was established in

4 And then "Il nake a motion that public coment be 4 1994 And Wirtsboro Qreek, whichis the southern portion of

5 limted to three mnutes per person. ¢ can, as Bll Cargo 5 that boundary, wes established in 1995

6 always says, you can do alnost anything in three mnutes, 6 The Qountry View North plats, they have stormwater

7 tell us exactly what the problemis. 7 infrastructure; but as | nentioned, since about the md to

8 And so |'d nake that motion that we limt the 8 late '90s there has been nore of a process, a legal process

9 coments to three mnutes per person. |s there -- 9 toensure that all newplats fromthe late '90 and on go

10 BOARD MEVBER JCBH VESTGATE: | will second that 10 through that formal process of getting the stormwater

11 notion. 11 infrastructure established as a county drain. But before

12 BOARD CHAIR KEN SCUTER  Mved and seconded. 12 that time there vasn't that formal and |egal process to get

13 Al in favor, say aye. 13 that established

14 BOARD MEVBER JCBH VEESTGATE:  Aye. 14 So Ken and | were then hired to delineate a

15 BOARD CHAR KEN SQUTER ~ Aye. 15 drainage district. Soadrainage district is essentially a

16 BOARD SECRETARY R CH VANDER KLXK ~ Aye. 16 watershed. So everything within that drainage district is

17 BOARD CHA R KEN SIUTER Al right. Let's start 17 considered contributing runoff to the stormwater

18 out with the engineering here. 18 infrastructure that's part of those Country View North plats

19 ENG NEER LUCAS TTMMER ALl right. Thank you, Ken. 19 And we were able to do that by using @S county

20 Vé'Il start out with a presentation. (nce again, 20 contour data. \é have one-foot contour data fromthe county

21 ny nane is Lucas Timmer. |'man engineer with Prein & 21 that is very effective in determning the watershed. \¢ can

22 Newhof, along with Ken Bosna who is here as well. \% are the 22 also use our record drawings to determine high points on

23 engineers that were hired to do sone prelininary review of 23 roads, to help us with delineating any aerials

24 the Qountry View Drain. 24 V¢ then go out and visit the site to locate the

25 So the Qountry View Drain is an existing storm 25 draininfrastructure and to confirmthe watershed we put
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1 together makes sense. 1 If it does become a county drain, and frompublic

2 So this map right here is the proposed drai nage 2 testinony we find out that there actually are alot of issues

3 district. As you can see these blue lines here are the 3 withthis drainthat wll require some formof naintenance

4 infrastructure that's in here. W& have infrastructure as 4 project, the process usually follows this kind of flow path.

5 part of Country VewNorth and this infrastructure was put in 5 Sowhat wll happen then is after this we find out there are

6 on Terri Lyn Lane as Country View North No. 2. 6 issues, Kenand | will investigate the issues and ve'l

7 And ve al so have this red boundary. This red 7 deternine what feasible projects are to inprove drainage in

8 boundary here is the watershed boundary. So everything 8 the area

9 withinthis red boundary is considered part of the drainage 9 V' Il then go through a design process for drainage

10 district, so that it would be considered contributing runoff 10 naintenance and i nprovenents. So anongst the feasible

11 tothis draininfrastructure. And everything on the outside 11 projects we will select a project that makes sense. V¢ don't

12 woul d be considered outside of the drainage district, so they 12 want to go with a Cadillac project when a Yugo project coul d

13 would be not part of that watershed. 13 work just as well, right? So we vant to make a project that

14 So the next map shows the aerial of the proposed 14 nakes sense for the issues that are occurring in the drai nage

15 drainage district, the infrastructure. It is worth noting 15 district

16 that Ken and | went out back inlate July to check these 16 V' [ then do project design and survey. V'l put

17 drainage districts, and we were unable to locate the outlet 17 the project out for hid and construction. And then fol | ow ng

18 for this stormsewer system 18 that will be Day of Reviewof Apportionnent. So how that

19 V¢ vere able to locate a catch basin behind a hone, 19  process works is that the project costs and engineering costs

20 aduplex right here, but we were not able to locate the 20 and legal costs wll all be assessed out then to the Gtawa

21 outlets right here. So we are suspecting that the outlets 21 County Road Conmission, to Holland Township, but also to the

22 coul d possibly be buried. Wiich these plats being 22 properties within the drainage district

23 established inthe late '80s, it's definitely possible that 23 And | want to make sure that everyone is aware if

24 over the years they coul d become buried. And perhaps you 24 o project were to occur and there is no drainage i ssues

25 guys here in the audience can provide us more infornation on 25 Hlland Township is willing to pay for all these costs, al
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1 that. 1 the legal costs and engineering costs to make this into a

2 So followng this, we'll allowtime for public 2 county drain. The costs wll only be assessed out to the

3 testinmony. You guys will each have three mnutes, just give 3 property owners if it's determned that a project needs to

4 us sone nore information. 4 occur to address some formof naintenance issue with the

5 V¢ are not aware of any flooding issues. The 5 county drain

6 township, the road commssion and the county aren't aware of 6 Inthe future, if you guys don't have a probl em

7 anyissues inthis area; but it's possible that you guys 7 now but let's say a couple years fromnow you get a hig rain

8 owning properties in this district are aware of issues that 8 and you have a sinkhol e that forns in the road froma

9 nmay need to be taken care of. 9 collapsed stormsever, a petition would then be needed i f

10 Fol | owi ng public testinony, the board will then 10 it's a pretty big costly project

11  deternmine the necessity of the petition based on public 1 So a petition is needed for any project that costs

12 health, welfare and/or convenience, after hearing everybody's 12 nore than $5,000 per nmle. So the petition process would

13 testimony. 13 either go through the township or you guys as the property

14 Soif it's deemed necessary by the hoard, this 14 owners, and we'd have a sinilar Board of Determination

15 systemwill then becone a county drain. So fromnow on then 15 process |ike we're having today to discuss what the issues

16 that stormwater systemw |l have an entity that's 16 are. And this board would then determne if it's necessary

17 responsible for naintaining it inthe future. 17 toinprove and naintain the drain for what the issues are.

18 If it"s deemed not necessary by the board, then no 18 If the project is less than 5000, let's say it's

19 further action wll occur. The systemwill remain private. 19 just a mnor blockage that involves a contractor coning out

20 It will be then the responsibility of the property owners 20 there for half a day with an excavator to renove sone dirt

21 then for any future naintenance on that stormsewer system 21 what woul d happen then is we woul d not go through this formal

22 So this slide has a lot of language in here and 22 petition process. This project woul d be likely less than the

23 I'll go through it fairly quickly, but we just want to 23 $5,000, and then Joe woul d have the ability then to assess

24 explain what the processes are if this becones a county 24 that out wthout going through the formal petition Board of

25 drain. 25 Deternination process.
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1 So assessments for all future projects woul d be 1 wvay we take care of the property

2 made to Gtawa County, the road commission, Holland Township 2 | mean you could take a drive in there and take a

3 and property owners. 3 look at it because it's a very wvell-maintained piece of

4 So that's the end of ny presentation. Thank you. 4 property all the way around

5 BOARD CHAIR KEN SQUTER  Can you go back to your 5 And that cornfieldis 100 percent sand. So to say

6 picture? 6 there is going to be sone drainage issue, there will be water

7 ENG NEER LUCAS TIMER  Yes. 7 buildup, none whatsoever.

8 BOARD CHAIR KEN SCUTER ~ You' re showi ng storm 8 BOARD CHAR KEN SCUTER | woul dn't mind seeing

9 drainage coning out into, is that a lake there? Q is that 9 your pictures

10 just open ground or what -- it looks like everything is going 10 So basically there is a creek or --

11 to the center there. Wat is that? 11 MR CALEB VANDEN BCBCH  Yeah, so basically, this

12 ENG NEER LUCAS TTMER  That's a good questi on. 12 isthe old farmbarn here and this is the creek right here

13 Qould he -- 13 that we have neat and trinmmed

14 ENG NEER KEN BOBMA  That wes set up for future 14 So then this is the creek picture right here as

15 devel opment. | believe there was supposed to be an outlet 15 well too, sothisis behind all the four-plexes

16 there for that particular area, to have sone detention, but 16 This is abrush pile | was not able to burn because

17 some future devel opnent in there. 17 it was pushed up and into a bunch of trees. But over the

18 Are you still the devel oper on that and is that 18 last three years I've got burn permts, |1've had enpl oyees of

19 correct, Seve? 19 Country Miew renoving brush and renoving debris fromthe

20 BOARD CHAIR KEN SIUTER ~ So wies there like at the 20 creek.

21 end of the stormsewers, was there |ike a ponding area or 21 The township also hired themat one point. They

22 sonet hi ng? 22 took a 40-yard dunpster and filled it with trash. And you

23 ENG NEER KEN BOSMA: It showed that as a snal | 23 can see how much the kids fromthe nei ghboring properties, |

24 area. 24 mean there is tires in there, they put wood in there

25 BOARD CHAIR KEN S(UTER  Smal | area for pondi ng? 25 The problemis they, at that 16-unit building, have
Page 19 Page 21

1 ENG NEER KEN BOBMA  Yep. 1 no vwhere to go, they have no green space. So the kids take

2 ENG NEER LUCAS TTMER  And this is all cornfield 2 tothe ditches. And you can see everything --

3 right now 3 BOARD CHAIR KEN SCUTER  You did too when you were

4 ENG NEER KEN BOBMA So it" s possi bl e over tine 4 akid.

5 it'sjust filledin. 5 MR CALEB VANDEN BCBCH  (h, yes, of course | did.

6 BOARD CHAIR KEN SQ(UTER  Ckay.  Thank you very 6 BOARD CHAR KEN S(UTER V¢ al | did that.

7 much. 7 MR CALEB VANDEN BCBCH  But the kids at Country

8 | think we'll go right then to public coment, or 8 Mew | see everything that goes on. | knowtenants by nanes

9 public testimony. 1'I1 open that for public comment. 9 and who lives where and what happens. And thisisn't from

10 And | guess we're just going to start -- let's 10  our property

11 start with the gentleman right at the right there. 1 You can see the way we maintain. And thisis

12 Do you have anything, real good input to give? 12 from-- you can even see the building in the picture here

13 Wat's going on here? 13 It comes straight fromthe building

14 MR CALEB VANDEN BCBCH  Yep, ny name is Caleb 14 BOARD CHAIR KEN SQUTER  Wiere does that creek

15  VandenBosch. | work at Gountry View Apartnents so |'mthere 15 drainto?

16 day in and day out. 16 ENG NEER LUCAS TMER o let e -- Caleb, just

17 So to say there is vater issues, | nean not that | 17 confirm thisis the creek right here on the east side of

18 see. \¢'ve never had any issues. Soto say that all of the 18  your property?

19 sudden there needs to be some drainage change, | don't know 19 MR CALEB VANDEN BOSCH  Yep, down this whol e side.

20 wvhat for. 20 ENG NEER LUCAS TTMER  And that's a county drain,

21 | mean | know that we take care of the drainage 21 Ken, correct?

22 down the whol e side of that cornfield where there is a river, 22 ENG NEER KEN BOSVA  That's Drain No. 8 and that's

23 | guess you could say. V¢ take care of that. The 23 actually excluded fromthe district as we showit now

24 neighboring properties do not, to the north of us. 24 BOARD CHAR KEN SIUTER  The drain as it is. But

25 So | got pictures if you want to see themof the 25 this particular devel opment drains to that creek then, but
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1 youjust couldn't find the outlet? 1 M CALEB VANDEN BOBCH  So you can kind of see,
2 ENG NEER KEN BOSVA Qorrect. 2 though, all the growth that has kind of come up along the
3 Maybe, Cal eb, you're open to helping us understand 3 creek area, and it just keeps going and going. But nothing
4 vhere those pipes may go that we're talking about. 4 changes withit.
5 M CALEB VANDEN BOSCH My dad and Steve woul d 5 And thisis -- | mean we --
6 know exactly. V@ coul d pinpoint where things are. So we 6 BOARD CHA R KEN SIUTER - With all the Ash that have
7 knowwhere al | those things are. 7 been dying you're getting those trees down in there.
8 ENG NEER KEN BOBMA Ckay. 8 MR CALEB VANDEN BCBCOH Rght. Qur problemis the
9 BOARD CHAIR KEN SCUTER  That woul d be hel pful for 9 kids don't have any place to go so they go to the ditch and
10 them 10 they fill it up. That's what they do.
1 | think the main thing that we're trying to dois 1 BOARD CHAIR KEN SCUTER  That's under st andabl e.
12 get this systemso that it's in the public entity. It 12 Looks good. Looks Iike you --
13 probably shoul d have been right away when the plat was done, 13 BOARD MEVBER JCBH VEESTGATE:  Thank you for the
14 but it didn't happen. 14 pictures.
15 MR CALEB VANDEN BOSCH R ght. 15 MR CALEB VANDEN BOSCH No prohl em
16 BOARD CHAIR KEN SCUTER It | ooks |ike you're 16 BOARD CHAIR KEN SCUTER  Next ?
17  keeping -- the main drainis being done really well. 17 M STEVE GRASSMD  I'mSteve Gassmd.
18 MR CALEB VANDEN BOBCH | nean we hired a 18 | think he just said nost of it. But, yeah, he
19 contractor last year. He trimmed out everything that was 19  basically said everything.
20 growng wthin that drainage. 20 M KELLY VANDEN BCGBCH 1" mKel |y VandenBosch, one
21 And then | also, over the last four years, have 21 of the partners in Qountry View
22 records of renting a tractor and brush hog and brush hoggi ng 22 And as far as the issues of drainage | know of
23 everything down to keep it flow ng clear. 23 anything just like Caleb had nentioned, there was atile that
24 BOARD CHAIR KEN SCUTER  That sounds good. 24 was coning off fromthat. | was thinking that vent all the
25 M CALEB VANDEN BOSCH So vie put work into it. 25 way to the creek, but Holland Engineering did that

Page 23 Page 25
1 BOARD CHA R KEN S(UTER  That's great. |'mglad to 1 origina -- I'msure there is sonething within the plat that
2 seeit. 2 shows where that drain drained off to the side back behind
3 But | was kind of confused on howthis thing -- 3 those four-pl exes.
4 M CALEB VANDEN BCBCH  That just goes down the 4 And like | say, | presumed -- | knowthere is a
5 whole property but | feel it's part of -- it's not part of, 5 catch basin out inthe field it mght end upin that. That
6 but it ispart of the whole drainage system And thisis 6 was ny thinking that that's where it ended up.
7 what we do because this flows through the midd e of our 7 But we could digintothat alittle bit and help
8 property. 8 you find out where that lies.
9 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER LXK But you're 9 BOARD CHAIR KEN SUTER ' msure the engi neers
10 saying these are outside of this drainage district? 10 woul d be very receptive to you kind of showing themthat,
1 MR CALEB VANDEN BCBCH  So the property on 132nd 11 where those things are.
12 and Rley Sreet, thereis abig, it'slike a 16-unit 12 MR KELLY VANDEN BCBCH | just don't understand
13 building or sonething of that sort, and the same thing with 13 why the properties to the north aren't part of this if there
14 @l the duplexes just to the north of us. It's those kids 14 is going to be an establishment of that, because |ike Caleb
15 that keep putting everything in the creek that we have to 15 had mentioned, that's primarily where the issues lie as far
16 keep clearing. 16 asif anything does get plugged up. That's where the trash
17 And it's the fact that these property owners, they 17 comes from that's where the debris cones from
18 do no work whatsoever for the drainage. So it builds up 18 BOARD CHAIR KEN S(UTER  Ken, do you want to
19 there before it gets to us. But then we get the nmess to 19  comment on that?
20 clean up consistently. 20 ENG NEER KEN BOBMA As Lucas indicated up front
21 | know ny mom Terri, has talked to the township 21 it's based on a watershed.
22 last year too about it because it gets to the point where 22 So the infrastructure that has no authority right
23 it'salot of work for us and we keep it up. 23 nowis outlined in there before, and then what we're |ooking
24 BOARD CHAIR KEN SQUTER ~ Sure, | understand. This 24 at iswhat drains to that infrastructure. So those
25 looks like kind of a wooded area. You got this pretty nice. 25 properties to the north don't cone into those specific
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1 infrastructures, doesn't drain there. That drains to that 1 And we've tried to maintain our commnity the best

2 creek, as you're saying, which is a county drain, they call 2 wecan. And | would say that if you were to drive around

3 it Dainh. 8 3 right now | think you'd consider us one of the top

4 Soit'sreally outside of it, it doesn't flowto 4 vell-maintained apartment conmunities in the area

5 that infrastructure. 5 Over the 35 years, | think one tine we had a water

6 MR KELLY VANDEN BCBCH  That's not one and the 6 issue, and that's everybody was flooded. | don't knowif

7 sane? 7 that was about 15 years or so but there was a huge flooding

8 ENG NEER KEN BOBMA No.  That actually is an 8 So ve have not had any water backing up into those

9 established county drain al ready. 9 sewer areas or whatever you want to call those areas in the

10 Wat we're looking at is the infrastructure, all 10 roads, we've never had that

11 these plats, site condominiunms, other things that have been 1 But again like Caleb said, probably our biggest

12 devel oped in the township that were attached to them never 12 dilemma i s how such a crunch of housing is allowed to be

13 had an authority over just those sections, those pipes in 13 devel oped. V¢ have got a big space for our residents, they

14 there. And that's what this is doing is establishing those 14 got big lawns, big space for kids; and when you've got tiny

15 areas that have no authority. 15 tiny spaces for kids that come into our community |ooking for

16 So we're just trying to get those under a county 16 aplace toplay, aplace toride their bikes, and they have

17 drain -- or that's what's being asked. If it's being deemed 17 no place to go, so they do go to the ditches

18 not, then nothing happens and it remains private. But it 18 So that was last spring when | had called, | think

19 gives to sonehody the mechanismto be able to maintainit. 19 | talked with you, Joe. And one guy that took all this stuff

20 BOARD GHAR KEN SIUTER  So Gounty Drain No. 8is a 20 out saidit looks |ike a garbage site, and they had to cone

21 county drain and there is nechanisns to get that cleaned or 21 back with, what, a big dunpster?

22 taken care of. But this portion of the plat that the storm 22 WATER RESOLRCES OO JCE BUSH A dunpst er,

23 sewer and the easements and that sort of thing, are not under 23 correct. That was one of our contractors

24 your jurisdiction? 24 M5 TERR VANDEN BOBCH | nean we're talking tires

25 ENG NEER KEN BOSMA Yes.  And you can actual |y 25 tocars, we're talking pallets, things | can hardly unload.
Page 27 Page 29

1 fall inseveral different drainage districts. Soyou wll 1 | meanl coulddoit, but we're talking about sone ngjor

2 alsobe part of that Drain No. 8 drainage district, because 2 stuff that's getting hauled down and hauled in

3 that land does get into the Gounty Drain No. 8. It just 3 ['mnot sure what happens with what the planning

4 keeps going. Eventually you're all part of Lake M chigan, 4 and devel opnent is for anynore in that area, but you're

5 right? 5 trying to concentrate a ot of people with no place for kids

6 But these are all different smaller subdistricts 6 togo. Soif youlooked, if you had a chance to wal k and

7 that way. And that's all we're looking at is this particular 7 look right now you'd say, wow Because | had to contact

8 part, when it was built, never was, come under anybody's 8 Randy Pluster (ph) with the unit on the corner of 132nd and

9 authority. 9 Rley, there was no closures around those dunpsters for years

10 M STEVE RASSMD Ckay. Can | ask one question? 10 and years and years

11 Wat happens if we expand again? 1 And guess what's right behind the dunpsters; the

12 ENG NEER KEN BOBMA: So i f you expand, that woul d 12 river.

13 conme under a 433 on that. Sowe'dtieintoit wth this and 13 Did you see that, Lucas?

14 then those properties also woul d be part of that district, as 14 ENG NEER LUCAS TTMER ~ Yeah.

15 well as the road comission being a public road and a public 15 M. TERR VANDEN BCBOH (kay. So we begged them

16 township. 16 to get a dunpster because the garbage woul d be tally-hoed

17 M STEVE GRASSMD  And that will automatically be 17 over the top and land up down again into the river.

18 put into the -- 18 So, if you noticed, there is a brand-new encl osure

19 ENG NEER KEN BOSMA Yes, you woul dn't have to go 19 around there after about how many years?

20 through this process again. 20 So we've been trying to maintain. V¢ care about

21 BOARD CHAIR KEN SQUTER  Young | ady? 21 our community. |1'mpart of Holland. 1'mpart of the area.

22 M. TERR VANDEN BOBCH (Ckay, this is newto e, 22 | care about the community. | care about the crine. | care

23 but I'mTerri VandenBosch. And |'ve been with Gountry View 23 about our tenants. V@ care about drugs. V¢ care about al

24 Apartnents when it started about 35 years ago this fall. So 24 those things

25 |'ve seen vhat's been going on for a long tine. 25 But we can't help what happens on Wirtshoro
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1 Because if you take a ride down \Wirtsboro, you see a 1 But we got to that point it's good and clean and
2 different picture. If you take a look and you go into these 2 clear.
3 places right here along Riley and behind us, you can see who 3 M. TERR VANDEN BOBCH | guess | would just ask
4 cares and vho doesn't care. 4 that the units that are near the river get addressed. That
5 But, again, if thisis sonething to do with 5 would be ny plea today. Because | can do everything | can
6 drainage and something that has to happen, then | guess it 6 withnyriver area, but when you have other areas that are
7 does. | feel Iike the brunt of the expense is going to be 7 not looked at and maintained --
8 right on us, because that's what you're showing us right now 8 VATER RESORCES QW JCE BUSH  This is why we
9 onthismap, right? Soif anything is assessed, the places 9 hold public hearings, sowe can actually hear --
10 that have been naintained and caring are going to be taking 10 M. TERR VANDEN BOSCH  Yep.
11 the brunt of the assessnent. Qorrect? 1 VATER RESOURCES COW JCE BUSH  -- because it's
12 VATER RESOURCES W JCE BUSH VeIl as of right 12 hard to keep up with everything --
13 nowwe don't have a project, nor do | perceive one. Vé're 13 M. TERR VANDEN BCBCH It is. | think the
14 just doing the process, the legal process. 14 garbage i s maybe | essening since they got the enclosures this
15 M5 TERR VANDEN BCBOH  Ckay.  And now did you 15 past spring.
16  know Roscoe DeVfies years ago? 16 VATER RESOURCES OO JCE BUSH  And this is good
17 WWATER RESOURCES OO JCE BUSH  Very wel | . 17 for the township to hear too for planning purposes,
18 M5, TERR VANDEN BCBOH So | guess mainly that 18  ordinances, zoning, clean-ups.
19 whole river that is east of our project, that is really where 19 Hstorically, if people are deliberately putting
20 they felt, we keep that clean, we keep that flowing, that is 20 tiresindrains, | will go back and assess those peopl e who
21 the place that water is going to be going to. 21 dothat --
22 So again |'ve been with the project for 35 years, 22 Ms. TERR VANDEN BCGBCH  Ckay.
23 v have not had no water issue, okay. 23 VATER RESOLRCES OOM JCE BUSH | send thema
24 BOARD MEMBER JCOBH VESTGATE  Ckay. 24 notice and say, either get themout, or | wll get themout
25 VWATER RESOURCES OO JCE BUSH  And then 25 and then send you the bill --

Page 31 Page 33
1 historically Iike when we clean that out, | think Holland 1 MB. TERR VANDEN BCBCH  Yeah.
2 Township and the county and the road commission, | think we 2 VWATER RESORCES OO JCE BUSH  -- if they're
3 all pick that cost up to clean that out. 3 deliberately just dunping, or they knowthey're doing it.
4 So historically Holland Township has been willing 4 Not intentional but it becones a problem--
5 topick up the tab for those cleanups of these rivers, if 5 M5, TERR VANDEN BCBCH  Yeah.
6 it'smnimal. Ifit's over -- 6 VATER RESOURCES OO JCE BUSH  -- and that's
7 M. TERR VANDEN BCBCH  They have done some. V¢ 7 typically what wve do. Soit's nice to knowthat you guys are
8 didhire Top Notch Service. 8 doing your part, we appreciate that.
9 MR CALEB VANDEN BCBCH  Last year Top Notch cane 9 M. TERR VANDEN BCBCH V@ try to do the best we
10 out and brush hogged everything south of the bridge -- 10 can. | feel bad for the kids that have no place. And that's
1 VWATER RESOURCES COW JCE BUSH  Ckay. 11 why they go to the creek.
12 MR CALEB VANDEN BCBCH  -- that was right along 12 So it was all cleaned out and now there is bridges
13 the creek. He went in as nuch as he could. And over the 13 across there again.
14 past four years I've brush hogged it down nyself too just to 14 VATER RESOURCES OO JCE BUSH  Because we j ust
15 keep everything fromgrowng up. Next thing we have trees 15 went through and cleaned out another section. So No. 8,
16 growngin ditches. Sonowit's perfectly clear that whol e 16 that's abigdrain, it goes along way, all the way up to
17 way down. 17 Qive Township and down to Lake Mac. It's a hig one.
18 So four or five years ago, no, it wasn't. 18 BOARD CHAIR KEN S(UTER  Jerry?
19 VATER RESOURCES COW JCE BUSH  Right. 19 ROD OOMM SSI QN JERRY GLMMN - Jerry O man, Qtawa
20 M CALEB VANDEN BCBCH MNowit is. W put afair 20 County Road Conmi ssi on.
21 amount of tine and money into it because |'ve hired kids over 21 ["'mnot anare of any issues with the storm sewer
22 the past fewyears to build huge brush piles. You start at 22 under the road there. It's great that, you know it's built
23 one end, you burn it across, you get burn permts. You can't 23 30 plus years ago and there haven't been any issues. That's
24 this day, it don't work; okay, nowyou can this day; now you 24 not always the case around the county.
25 can't. It's ahassle. 25 But eventually the nortar around those pipes comng
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1 intothe basins, that mortar breaks down. It still mght be 1 some issues, can you see about getting it fixed. V& can get
2 good for another 30 years, but at some point there will be 2 those fixed.
3 sinkholes that will develop around a catch basin or around a 3 But ve can't now because of the fact that it is not
4 mnhole that wll need to be repaired. 4 apublic system |It's there, the drain commssioner approved
5 S -- and to have this established as a drai nage 5 it at some tine in the past, but never took it over.
6 district, that gives a mechanismfor those repairs to happen, 6 And vhat |'msaying on this system like | woul d
7 asnooth process. 7 see on any system the best bet is to have it under the
8 S as far as that goes, the road comission woul d 8 jurisdiction of an entity within the county, soif sonething
9 bein favor of establishing the district. 9 happens, you call him
10 BOARD CHAIR KEN S(UTER  Ckay. Then is there any 10 You probably woul d have called the township and the
11 other public that went to add toit? 11 township would throw up their hands and say, we don't have
12 Then we're going close the public portion of this 12 jurisdiction of it. And then you'll call Jerry, and say,
13 hearing. 13 Jerry, you got a problem And Jerry says, we don't have any
14 Rch, do you have any conments? 14 jurisdiction of it.
15 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KLAK Ckay.  This is 15 | amjust totally in favor of tying these together.
16 aninteresting one because | hear that there are a nunber of 16 And | think originally they thought they were tied together,
17 variables involved in this whole process, in addition to what 17 | think originally, but legality wise, they aren't, and
18 we're addressing here, and it sounds as if there is some 18 that's the only difference. Ve re trying to figure the legal
19 issues that the township itself has been addressing and needs 19 parts of it.
20 to continue to address, particularly sone of the comments 20 Sotone, |'min favor.
21 that Terri nade. 21 BOARD MEMBER JCBH VEESTGATE:  To pi ggyback of f of
22 And so | don't, personally right now unless | can 22 that, there is no pending projects. This just creates a
23 be convinced otherwi se, | personally don't see an 23 district where if something does happen, it can be addressed.
24 overwhelming need to bring this into a drainage district; but 24 It doesn't nean you're going to get an assessnent inmediately
25 | can be persuaded by argument if | hear sone good argunents. 25 because this was created. It does allowthe authority of
Page 35 Page 37
1 But as Jerry just said, they haven't had any issues 1 someone to maintainit or clean it if something does happen.
2 and it could be good for another 30 years. So the township 2 Sothereis public benefit to that if something does happen.
3 does have the option to re-petition within a year or so, as 3 BOARD CHAIR KEN S(UTER  |'mready for a --
4 Lucas pointed out. 4 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KLCK: VéI1 | just
5 So at this point I'mkind of on the fence. 5 would like to make a coupl e coments.
6 BOARD MEMBER JCBH VEESTGATE: | agree with sone of 6 BOARD CHAR KEN SIUTER - (Kay.
7 those statements and | do believe there are sone | ocal 7 BOARD SECRETARY R CH VANDER KLXK: | appreci ate
8 township issues. And | can see there night be sone issues 8 your insight because | think that's very good.
9 with sone zoning violations that nay have to be addressed 9 And there was one thing that you said in terns of
10  through Holland Township with some of the nei ghboring 10 bringing it infor the public, inthat it's under the county.
11 properties. Qoviously this doesn't sound like we have 11 And | thought, that probably makes a ot of sense.
12 pending vater issues on the property. 12 There isn't anissuein the -- thereis alot of
13 Ken, your thoughts? 13 tangential kinds of things that have been tal ked about here
14 BOARD CHAIR KEN SCUTER  Ckay, |'magenerally in 14 that don't really directly relate --
15 favor of bringing all the drainage systens within the 15 BOARD CHAIR KEN SCUTER  To what we're tal king
16 county's jurisdiction. 16  about.
7 BOARD SECRETARY RICH VANDER KL&K  Right. i BOARD SECRETARY R CH VANDER KLOXK  -- to what we're
18 BOARD CHAIR KEN S(UTER  And we' re tal king 30- some 18 talking about. Soif youtry to separate all of that out,
19 years that it's been working great, and that's fantastic. 19 then I think your point is well made.
20 You guys have been keeping up your property really good. But 20 And so that being said, | would make a notion that
21 it'sstill -- 1"l give you an exanpl e. 21 the maintenance and inprovenent of the Country View Drainis
22 | live in Port Shel don Township, and we have one of 22 necessary, and conducive to the public health, convenience or
23 these sane things in our township, and that's close to 40 23 welfare.
24 years old now and we're having issues. And if our drainage 24 BOARD CHAIR KEN SQUTER Do we have support of
25 had beeninthis, | would have called and said, we're having 25 that?
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1 BOARD MVEMBER JCBH VESTGATE  |1'1 SUppOFt. 1 CERTI FI CATI ON OF COURT REPORTER AND NOTARY PUBLI C
2 BOARD CHAIR KEN SCUTER  Mbved and supported to 2 D
3 nake a motion that the [ocation, establishnent, construction 4 STATE GF MOH G )

4 of the Gountry View Drain as petitioned is necessary, and 5 ) ss

5 conducive to public health, convenience and welfare. 6 COUNTY OF MUSKEGON )

6 Al in favor, say aye. 7

7 BOARD MEMBER JCBH VEESTGATE: Aye. 8 | certify that this transcript, consisting of 40

8 BOARD OHA R KEN SCUTER Aye. 9 pages, is a conplete, true and correct record of the Board of

9 BONRD SECRETARY R CH VANDER KLCK Aye. 10 Determination - Country View Drain, held on August 19, 2021.
11

10 BOARD CHAIR KEN S(UTER  Those opposed? 12

1 Mbtion carried. 13 DATE:  August 30, 2021

12 | think that's it. 14

13 VATER RESORCES COMM JCE BUSH Vel | | want to 15 ,n . G

14 nmake a coupl e comments. | appreciate you guys coming in and 7 ?

15 spending the norning with us. The other thing is for the 10 NARJ_OR'E A_' VY

L. . . . M chi gan Li cense CSR-2616

16  appeal, so you can appeal today's decision with circuit 17 Vashi ngton Li cense 20109173

17 court. You got ten days after today. regon Li cense 20- 0468

18 Sone peopl e have tried that in the past or thought 18 I1inois License 084-004911

19 about it, but, yeah, there is noney and a cost to that. 19

20 But agai nwe appreci ate your tine. Thereis Notary Public Expires: GOctober 14, 2021, Miskegon

20 currently no project. | just want to make that statenent. 20 County, MechiganfActing in the State of M chigan

22 Andit is recorded, we don't have a project, there is no Z

23 assessment according to a project. It's just the 23

24 establishment. 24

25 Soif thereis issues, and if you see nore trash, 25

Page 39
1 besuretocontact us. And then Seve and | talk on a
2 regular basis, | talk with all the townships, but especially
3 Holland because it's a grow ng township.
4 V¢ have a ot of devel opments, alot of plats going
5 in, alot of comercial, alot of sites everywhere. It's
6 kind of crazy busy.
7 But that being said we try to be on top of the
8 trash issues. ¢ don't want blockages in them And if there
9 are sone neighbors that aren't being very environnental |y

10 sensitive by just throwing a lot of garbage in, then we need

11 to address those as well.

12 S that's all | got.

13 BOARD CHAIR KEN SCUTER  Thank you.

14 BOARD SECRETARY R CH VANDER KLOK:  |s there a

15 mtion to adjourn?

16 BOARD CHAIR KEN SQUTER  Mbtion to adjourn, so

17 noved.

18 (Board of Determnation - Gountry View Drain - adjourned

19 at 10:48am )

20

21

22

23

24

25
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